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Corporate Information
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Highlights of Interim Results

The Board announces the unaudited consolidated interim results of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2025.

Revenue e
(Loss)/profit attributable to the owners of PiN/NETE 2PN T )
the Company (&518) /5 F
(Loss)/earnings per share Tk (E518) /&

- Basic —HR
— Diluted —8E
Interim dividend per share R HEIRRE

Revenue of the Group for the Reporting Period was
approximately HK$1,709 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 58% as compared with the corresponding
period of 2024.

Loss for the Reporting Period attributable to the owners of
the Company was approximately HK$68 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 160% as compared with the
corresponding period of 2024.

Basic loss per share for the Reporting Period amounted to
approximately HKO0.89 cents, representing a decrease of
approximately 160% as compared with the corresponding
period of 2024.

The Board does not recommend the distribution of an interim
dividend (six months ended 30 June 2024: HKO0.3 cents).

PHIRERE

EEeSHAEEEZE2025F6A308 1F
SNEB KRG EIZ 2 A RS -

(Unaudited)
Six months ended 30 June
(RESER)

BZE6A30R L/~ fEA
2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
1,708,681 4,072,652
(67,570) 113,122

HK(0.89) cents HK1.49 cents

(0.89) 7l 1.4978111
HK(0.89) cents HK1.49 cents
(0.89)7% 1l 1,497

Nil HKO.3 cents

m 0.37 4l

MEHARNEEEHEFEL1,709
BEBIT  W2024F R FELD
58% °
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#9160% °
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Business Review and Analysis

EBRAR T

ANALYSIS OF THE BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
IN THE FIRST HALF OF 2025

Macroeconomic Environment

In June 2025, the World Bank announced the lifting of the ban on
financing for nuclear power and officially established partnership
with the International Atomic Energy Agency to jointly support the
orderly development of the nuclear industry of the world’s major
countries, particularly the developing countries. The lifting of the ban
on financing for nuclear power that had been in place for more than
a decade marked a shift in the mainstream attitude towards nuclear
power among countries across the world, including western countries
that had previously opposed the development of nuclear power, from
“conservative and prudent” to “active and progressive”.

The primary reason for this is the rapid development of the current
global digital economy has significantly increased the electricity
demand in different countries. According to the forecast of the
International Energy Agency, the electricity demand of data centres
across the world is expected to be more than twice by 2030, with
artificial intelligence becoming the main driver behind the surge
in the power consumption. Nuclear power, which has undergone
technological upgrades and become stable, safe, and efficient, will be
an important guarantee of electricity for the development of emerging
industries in countries around the world.

Nuclear Power Market and Industry Development

As of 30 June 2025, the net installed capacity of global transportable
nuclear power units (416 units) was 376GWe while the net installed
capacity of global nuclear power units under construction (62 units)
was 65GWe. In the first half of 2025, there was one new grid-
connected unit globally, being located in India, and the total installed
capacity was 0.63GWe. There were five new units in operation, three
of which were in China, and the total installed capacity was 5.85GWe.
Two units were shutdown in Belgium and Taiwan, China, respectively,
and the total installed capacity was 1.38GWe.

CGN Mining Company Limited = EZ 2 B[R A &
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Business Review and AnaIyS|s

Developments relating to nuclear power in major countries in the first

half of 2025 are as follows:

Increasing the Share of Nuclear Power Generation

In January, the Czech Republic submitted the updated “National
Energy and Climate Plan” to the European Commission, clearly
stating its share of nuclear power will increase from 40% in
2023 to 44% in 2030 and 68% in 2040.

In February, Japan approved the latest “Basic Energy Plan”.
According to the plan, Japan’s share of nuclear power
generation will increase from 8.5% to 20% from 2023 to 2040;
Korea announced its plan to gradually increase its share of
nuclear power generation from 31.4% in 2024 to 35.2% in
20838 in the same month.

In April, the China Nuclear Energy Association published the
Blue Book of China Nuclear Energy Development Report (2025).
The report showed that based on the current construction
pace and scheduling, China’s scale of installed nuclear power
capacity in operation is expected to rank the first in the world
by 2030, and its share of nuclear power generation will be
approximately 10% by 2040; in the same month, the Russian
government officially approved the Energy Strategy 2050 and
expected to increase its share of nuclear power generation to
25%.

Formulating Plans to Construct Additional/Reactivate Nuclear Power
Plants

In January, the Pakistan Nuclear Regulatory Authority issued a
licence to the Pakistan Atomic Energy Commission to build unit
5 at the Chashma Nuclear Power Plant.

In February, the Ministry of Energy of Thailand announced
its nuclear power development strategy, with the goal of
completing the installed nuclear power capacity of 0.6 million
kW by 2037.

EBRAR DTN
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Business Review and Analysis

EBRAR T

° In April, the Uzbekistan Atomic Energy Agency stated that
the first nuclear power plant in the country was scheduled for
the First Concrete Date in the second quarter of 2026; in the
same month, the Spanish Nuclear Safety Council stated that
every nuclear power plant in the country was preparing for the
reactivation of connected grids; the Indian government also
proposed the accelerated development of nuclear power, with
a plan to increase the installed nuclear power capacity from the
current level of 8.05 million kW to 100 million KW by 2047.

° In May, Donald Trump, the President of the United States, signed
four executive orders, including the reform of the United States
Nuclear Regulatory Commission and deployment of advanced
nuclear reactors, with an aim to support the quadrupling of
the installed nuclear power capacity in the United States to
400Gwe by 2050; in the same month, Indonesia announced its
plan to add 10 million kW of installed nuclear power capacity by
2040.

° In June, Kazakhstan announced that the State Atomic Energy
Corporation Rosatom would lead the construction of its first
nuclear power plant.

Lifting the Ban on the Nuclear Industry

° In February, the Italian cabinet officially commenced the
legislation process of lifting the ban on nuclear power.

° In May, the Danish government stated that it was considering
lifting the ban on the development of nuclear power that had
been in place for 40 years to strengthen the energy safety of
the country; in the same month, the Belgian Federal Parliament
officially overturned the policy of “nuclear power phase-out”.

Multinational Co-operation to Promote Nuclear Power Development

° In February, France and India jointly signed the collaboration
statement on establishing advanced modular reactors and
small modular reactors and renewed the memorandum
of understanding between India’s Department of Atomic
Energy and the French Alternative Energies and Atomic
Energy Commission; in May, France and Vietnam signed the
cooperation agreement on nuclear energy.

° In February, the US and India announced that both countries
would continue advancing the “US-India Energy Security
Partnership” and jointly promoting the implementation of the
US-India Civil Nuclear Cooperation Agreement.
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Business Review and Analysis

° In March, Korea and Thailand signed the cooperation agreement
on nuclear energy, with both sides focusing on promoting the
joint research and development of small modular reactors.

° In the first half of 2025, Russia signed the cooperation agreement
on nuclear energy with the governments of Ethiopia, Vietnam and
multiple African countries, respectively, thereby strengthening the
cooperation in the field of nuclear energy; in June, the Atomic
Energy Organization of Iran stated that Russia would assist Iran
in the construction of 8 nuclear power units.

With the rapid development of new fields including electric vehicles,
data centres and artificial intelligence, the world has entered a
new era of electricity. As a type of energy that is clean, stable
and scalable, nuclear power has become a preferred option amid
geopolitical uncertainty and surging demand for power consumption
in the world. According to the forecast of the International Energy
Agency, the nuclear power generation will reach its record high in
2025, and nuclear energy will embrace a new era of growth in future
decades. We believe that the global demand for natural uranium in
the future will continue to grow with the development of the nuclear
power industry.

Natural Uranium Market Conditions

As the major fuel of nuclear power, natural uranium is a key protection
for the steady development of the nuclear power industry. In the first
half of 2025, the spot price of natural uranium fluctuated between the
range of USD60-80/IbU;O; M. Due to the implementation of U.S.
tariff policies and the resumption of financing and procurement efforts
by SPUT, the physical uranium trust fund, as at the end of June 2025,
the average of the spot market index of natural uranium published by
UxC and TradeTech was USD78.50/1bU,O, representing a rise of 4%
as compared with the beginning of 2025. As for the long-term trading
price, as of the end of June, the average of the long-term index of
natural uranium published by UxC and TradeTech was USD80.00/
IbU,Og, being basically flat as compared with that of the beginning of
2025.

Note:  Under usual international practice, the usual measuring unit of natural uranium in
international uranium product trade is pound (Ib), and the usual units of uranium
reserves/production are tonnes of uranium (tU) and million pounds of natural
uranium. 1tU equals to approximately 2,599.78 Ib of U;O.
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Given the continuous increase in the current global demand for
natural uranium, the market has attached great importance to the
development of the primary supply of natural uranium in the future.
The spot price and long-term trading price of USD70-80/IbU,04
has been a prerequisite condition for the increased production
and reopening of current uranium mines. According to the second
quarterly report for 2025 of UxC, in 2024, a total of approximately
61,615tU was produced globally, representing an increase of 13%
compared with 2023. However, as for the additional production
capacity, due to the lengthy preparation required for new mine
projects to commence production and the fact that certain existing
uranium mine projects will be subject to the decreased production,
the supply of natural uranium still faces strong headwinds in response
to the huge demand for it after 2028.

The key events on the supply side of global natural uranium in the first
half of 2025 are as follows:

Production of Certain Uranium Mines Under Production

° In March, Paladin stated that its Langer Heinrich uranium mine
suffered no significant losses caused by the extreme rainstorm
weather, but expected that the production of its uranium mines
for this year might not reach the planned production capacity of
2,308tU.

° In the first half of 2025, BHP Group Limited announced its
plan to increase the copper production of the Olympic Dam by
more than two times, while maintaining the status quo of the
production of uranium, its sub-product; in April, the company
released its third quarterly report for FY2025, stating that the
total production for the first three quarters was approximately
2,180tU, representing a year-on-year decline of 18%.

° In June, Boss Energy Ltd. stated that its Honeymoon uranium
mine had reached the production target of approximately 327tU
within the first financial year.
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Business Review and Analysis

Commission of Uranium Mines Below Expectations

In April, Deep Yellow Limited, a uranium mine developer, stated
that it will defer the investment in the Tumas uranium mine
project in Namibia.

In May, Kazatomprom stated that the plan of developing
uranium mines at the mines of Budenovskoye, its joint venture
with Russia, has encountered a material delay due to shortage
of sulfuric acid supply and the deferred construction of factory
equipment. According to the original plan, the production of the
joint venture in 2024 should have been 2,500tU/year and reach
full production capacity of 6,000tU/year in 2026. However, its
actual annual production in 2024 was only 615tU.

Reopening of Uranium Mines

In June, Lotus Resources Ltd. stated that its Kayelekera project
will resume production activities in the third quarter of 2025.
The company planned to have a scheduled production of no
more than 1,000tU per year for the first seven years.

Progress at Other Uranium Mine Projects

In January, Grants Energy announced the start of the Grants
Precision In-Situ Recovery project and expected the production
to commence after 2030.

In January, Cosa Resources Corp. planned to commence the
drilling works of its Murphy Lake North project in the first quarter
of this year. In the same month, GoviEx Uranium Inc. published
the report on the feasibility study for the Muntanga project
in Zambia, with the study indicating an average production
capacity of the project amounting to 846tU/year, with the life of
mine spanning 12 years.

In February, the Nigerien government issued the mining permit
for the Moradi uranium mine to COMIREX SA. According to the
permit, COMIREX SA will produce approximately 300tU per
annum.
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° In March, France’s Orano and Uzbekistan’s state-owned
uranium producer Navoiyuran signed an agreement to jointly
develop the South Djengeldi uranium project. The project can
operate for 10 years, and its annual production is 700tU. Both
companies stated that they will continue exploration activities
and hoped to double the resources of the project.

Additionally, for financial institutions, SPUT, the physical uranium
trust fund, secured financing of USD200 million in June 2025, which
was the single largest financing for SPUT over the past 12 months;
SPUT resumed its natural uranium procurement activities in late June
since its last procurement six months ago, and procured a total of
approximately 616tU of natural uranium in early July, bringing its total
holding to approximately 26,103tU.

In summary, despite the positive development of the global nuclear
power industry has contributed to the rise in the demand for natural
uranium, there has been no significant release of production capacity
on the supply side of natural uranium, and the additional production
capacity was limited as the current development of uranium mines
still primarily focused on resuming and maximizing the production.
However, the resumption and commencement of uranium mines
also fell short of expectations and the investment in exploration still
remained at a historically low level, thus resulting in a higher degree of
uncertainty on the supply side.
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e 37 AEOranof B4Rl T HTIEH
A 4 ZE B Navoiyuran 3 & 5% A
HFAFZEmEHEE (South Diengeldi)
WIEE - ZIEBES10F - FE
ER700tU - MR R BRI H#EE
BE - HERZEBEEBERERA—

f& o

HEoN - SEEIESTE - RAHEYIRER
©SPUTH 202556 AEB2EEILRE -
ZEFERSPUTEE12ME A A RZ AR
BEE  SPUTE L FRi &g — X HKE
& N AREIMETRAHRKEEE -
E7AVIRFHREBRAMAGI6U - BIFH
249/426,103tU °

LR - BEERRETENEGRER
wE T RAMBR IR - KA B
RABRBERER - ERIMEFHEAE
B OmERE  FIBERAR o A - #
BEERKRESEITNREY - BERERA
HEE T E L BB - R FERAT
HEEE o



Business Review and Analysis

SUMMARY OF OPERATION IN THE FIRST
HALF OF 2025

Overall operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a loss of HK$68
million and revenue of HK$1,709 million, representing a decrease of
160% and 58%, respectively, as compared with the corresponding
period of 2024. The decrease in profit was mainly due to the fact
that on one hand, the unit cost of sales for the natural uranium
sales business of CGN Global, a member of the Group, was higher
than the unit selling price executed in the period due to the impact
of significant fluctuations in the price of contracts for international
trade in natural uranium, coupled with the fact that inventories are
accounted for by the weighted average cost method, resulting in a
decrease in the Group’s gross profit from natural uranium trading
as compared with the corresponding period of 2024; on the other
hand, the Group’s share of results of a joint venture and an associate
decreased as compared with the corresponding period of 2024 due
to the impact of a decrease in the price of natural uranium.

During the Reporting Period, the total equity source of the Group was
34,000tU and equity production was 650tU.

Natural Uranium Trading

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the procurement
and sale of 526tU uranium off-taken from Semizbay-U and Ortalyk
pursuant to the annual off-take arrangement with Semizbay-U and
Ortalyk, which generated trading revenue of approximately HK$754
million, with the average sales price of USD71.07/IbU,O4 and an
average sales cost of USD72.85/IbU,Os.

During the Reporting Period, CGN Global newly entered into sales
contracts for a total of 1,910tU of natural uranium, among which,
53% of the sales were contracted with clients from Europe, 30%
of the sales were contracted with clients from Asia and 17% of the
sales were contracted with clients from North America. Meanwhile,
CGN Global completed the delivery of 812tU of natural uranium and
recorded revenue of USD123 million (approximately HK$955 million).
As at 30 June 2025, CGN Global had contracted natural uranium
sales of 1,569tU at a weighted average cost of USD68.77/IbU,0,,
and contracted but not delivered natural uranium sales of 4,564tU,
with a weighted average selling price of USD80.52/1bU,Os.
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Business Review and Analysis

EBRAR T

Production and Operation of Semizbay-U

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group was interested in
49% of the equity interest of Semizbay-U, which mainly owns and
operates the Semizbay Mine and the Irkol Mine in Kazakhstan. The
remaining 51% equity interest of Semizbay-U is held by Kazatomprom.

During the Reporting Period, the production and operation of
Semizbay-U proceeded normally, with no material safety incidents.
The Semizbay Mine and the Irkol Mine outperformed their planned
uranium productions for the first half of the year. The planned uranium
production for the first half of the year was 407tU, as compared
with the actual uranium production of 428tU, representing the
completion rate of planned production of 105%; among which, the
actual uranium production of the Semizbay Mine was 191tU, and the
actual uranium production of the Irkol Mine was 237tU. The average
production costs for the Semizbay Mine and the Irkol Mine in the
first half of the year were USD32.49/IbU,O4 and USD27.69/IbU,Os,
respectively.

The Company indirectly acquired 49% interest in Semizbay-U in 2014
at the consideration of USD133.0 million and such 49% interest in
Semizbay-U is recognised as interest in a joint venture of the Group,
amounting to HK$491 million as at 30 June 2025, representing 5.7%
of the total assets of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received a total of HK$250
million dividend (net of tax) from Semizbay-U and the Group’s share
of results of Semizbay-U amounted to HK$128 million, representing
a decrease of 39% as compared with the corresponding period of
2024, which was mainly due to the decrease in profit of Semizbay-U
as compared with the corresponding period of 2024 as a result of
the decrease in the spot price of natural uranium, which led to the
decrease in the Group’s share of results of Semizbay-U as compared
with the corresponding period of 2024.
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Business Review and Analysis

Production and Operation of Ortalyk

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group was interested
in 49% of the equity interest of Ortalyk, which mainly owns and
operates the Central Mynkuduk Deposit and the Zhalpak Deposit
in Kazakhstan. The remaining 51% interest of Ortalyk is held by
Kazatomprom.

During the Reporting Period, there were no major safety incidents in
the course of production and operation of Ortalyk, and the Central
Mynkuduk Deposit and the Zhalpak Deposit have outperformed the
planned uranium production. The planned uranium production was
818tU with actual production of 923tU and the completion rate of
planned production was 113% in the first half of the year; among
which, actual uranium extracted from the Central Mynkuduk Deposit
and the Zhalpak Deposit was 845tU and 78tU, respectively. The
average production costs of the Central Mynkuduk Deposit and the
Zhalpak Deposit were USD25.21/IbU,O4 and USD25.47/IbU;0s,
respectively, during the first half of the year.

The Group acquired 49% interest in Ortalyk in 2021 at the
consideration of USD435.1 million and such 49% interest in Ortalyk
is recognised as interest in an associate of the Group, amounting to
HK$2,995 million as at 30 June 2025, representing 34.9% of the total
assets of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received a total of HK$321
million dividend (net of tax) from Ortalyk and the Group’s share
of results of Ortalyk amounted to HK$178 million, representing a
decrease of 24% as compared with the corresponding period of
2024, which was mainly due to the decrease in profit of Ortalyk
as compared with the corresponding period of 2024 as a result of
the decrease in the spot price of natural uranium, which led to the
decrease in the Group’s share of results of Ortalyk as compared with
the corresponding period of 2024.
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Business Review and Analysis

EBRAR T

Management and control on PLS Project

The Company will continue to actively communicate with Paladin to
jointly negotiate the development of the PLS Project.

Investor Relations Management

During the Reporting Period, the Company has continued to
enhance investor relations management and held the 2024 annual
results press conference as well as a number of regular investor
meetings. Meanwhile, the Company has also been able to share
and disseminate information about the Company, natural uranium
industry and its investment value in a timely manner through active
participation in offline brokerage strategy sessions, one-to-one/one-
to-many roadshows and reverse roadshow meetings, hosting offline
research on the Company for analysts and investors and enhancing
media publicity. In the first half of 2025, the Company participated in
more than 30 strategy meetings, actively communicated with more
than 100 institutional investors, and obtained 14 analyst reports,
which were widely recognized by investors and analysts.

In addition, the Company actively participated in authoritative media
awards and was awarded the Investor Relations Awards by the Hong
Kong Investor Relations Association in the first half of 2025.

Other Significant Investments Held

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any other
significant investment save for its interests in Semizbay-U, Ortalyk
and Paladin as disclosed above.

By the end of 2024, the 11.26% equity interest in Fission originally
held by the Company has been fully converted into a 2.61% equity
interest in Paladin.

Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.
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In the second half of 2025, the Company will continue to promote
procurement of natural uranium and sale arrangement of uranium
products off-taken from Semizbay-U and Ortalyk in accordance with
its annual plan.

The Company will continue to maintain its edge in international natural
uranium trading, expand the scale of trade, improve trading quality
and increase profitability while maintaining close control over risks.

The Company will continue to participate in the operation and
management of Semizbay-U and Ortalyk through participation in
the decision-making process of their respective board of directors
and on-site works of its despatched teams. The Company will work
together with its management to ensure that the production tasks
will be completed in the second half of the year and that the annual
production, profit and sales targets can be achieved. Going forward,
the Company will focus on the insufficient supply of sulphuric acid at
Ortalyk to complete the annual planned production of uranium and
ensure the completion of the annual mine construction missions of the
Zhalpak Deposit through strict supervision and in-depth participation
in the mine expansion plan of the Zhalpak Deposit. In addition, the
Company will continue to provide strong support to Semizbay-U
and Ortalyk in terms of technological innovation to ensure that the
production and operation targets are met with high efficiency and
quality.

In the second half of 2025, the Company will deepen its market
expansion strategy and continue to actively participate in various
marketing activities to further broaden its brand awareness and
market influence, thereby demonstrating steady development and
positive image of the Company in all aspects.

Meanwhile, the Company will unswervingly implement the concept
of sustainability, integrate it into every aspect of its business through
the top-down approach, and strive to continuously optimise and
enhance its environmental, social and governance management level.
The Company will continue to deepen its development in the field of
uranium resources, step up its exploration and development efforts,
and construct a series of uranium resource projects with long-term
sustainability potentials, in order to promote the sustainable growth,
transformation and upgrades of the businesses of the Company.

Business Prospect
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Financial Review and Financial Capital

MBREEMNBER

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND ANALYSIS

The Company’s investments and operating strategies affect its
business performance, which is reflected in the financial statements.

Major Financial Indicators

Profitability indicators
Gross profit margin (%)’
EBITDA (HK$ million)?
EBITDA/Revenue ratio (%)°
Net profit margin (%)*
Operating ability indicators
Days sales of inventory — Average (Days)®
Trade receivables cycle — Average (Days)®
Investment return indicators
Return on equity (%)’
(Loss)/profit attributable to the owners of
the Company to revenue ratio (%)?
Return on total assets (%)°

Repayment ability indicators
Current ratio (%)'°
Debt to asset ratio (%)
Gearing ratio (%)'?
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HZ6H30H IEXEA
2025 2024
20254 20244
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BFIEENIEE
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54.88 49.99
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Financial Review and Financial Capital

Difference between revenue and cost of sales divided by revenue multiplied by
100%.

The sum of (loss)/profit before taxation, finance costs, depreciation of right-of-
use assets and depreciation of property, plant and equipment.

The sum of (loss)/profit before taxation, finance costs, depreciation of right-
of-use assets and depreciation of property, plant and equipment divided by
revenue multiplied by 100%.

(Loss)/profit for the period divided by revenue multiplied by 100%.

Average inventories (i.e. the arithmetic average of the beginning and the end
of the Reporting Period) divided by average daily cost of sales (cost of sales
divided by 180 days).

Average trade receivables (i.e the arithmetic average of the beginning and the
end of the Reporting Period) divided by average daily sales (revenue divided by
180 days).

(Loss)/profit attributable to the owners of the Company divided by total average
equity (i.e. the arithmetic average of the beginning and the end of the Reporting

Period) multiplied by 100%.

(Loss)/profit attributable to the owners of the Company divided by revenue
multiplied by 100%.

(Loss)/profit attributable to the owners of the Company divided by total average
asset (i.e. the arithmetic average of the beginning and the end of the Reporting
Period) multiplied by 100%.

Current assets divided by current liabilities multiplied by 100%.

Total debt divided by total assets multiplied by 100%.

Total debt divided by total equity multiplied by 100%.
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Financial Review and Financial Capital

MBREEMNBER

FINANCIAL RESULTS ANALYSIS

Revenue

Six months ended 30 June

BBREDIN
EES

Movements

BZ6A308 < EA 2

2025
20254
HK$’000
FET
(Unaudited)
(RECER)

Natural uranium trading KIAE 5 1,708,681

Increase/
(Decrease)

B O )

Increase/

2024 (Decrease)

20244 #0, CRd)

HK$’'000 HK$’'000 %

FAT BT %
(Unaudited)
(CREEZEZ)

4,072,652 (2,363,971 (59)

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$1,709 million, representing a decrease of 58% as compared
with the corresponding period of 2024, which was mainly due to
the fact that on one hand, new trade opportunities in the market of
international trade in natural uranium were limited due to the impact
of international spot market price for natural uranium, resulting in a
decrease in the sales volume of CGN Global as compared with the
corresponding period of 2024; on the other hand, the unit selling
price of CGN Global witnessed a decrease as compared with
the corresponding period of 2024 due to the impact of significant
fluctuations in the price of contracts for international trade in natural
uranium. As a result of the impacts of above-mentioned factors,
the Group’s revenue suffered a decline as compared with the
corresponding period of 2024.

Cost of Sales

Six months ended 30 June
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Movements
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2025

2025%F
HK$’000
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(REER)

Natural uranium trading KINIE 5) 1,955,475

Increase/ Increase/

(Decrease) (Decrease)
Ean, Osd) 1 CRid)
HK$'000 %
FAT %

2024
20244
HK$’000
T
(Unaudited)
(CREEZEZ)

4,129,084  (2,173,609) (53)

During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales of the Group amounted to
HK$1,955 million, representing a decrease of 53% as compared with the
corresponding period of 2024 which was mainly due to the corresponding
decrease in the cost of sales of CGN Global due to the decrease in its
revenue as compared with the corresponding period of 2024.
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Financial Review and Financial Capital

Other Operating Income and Other Gain or Loss, Net

During the Reporting Period, other operating income of the Group
amounted to HK$6 million, representing a decrease of approximately
81% as compared with the corresponding period of 2024 which was
mainly due to the increase in exchange loss.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the Reporting Period, the selling and distribution expenses
of the Group amounted to HK$8 million, representing an increase
of approximately 51% as compared with the corresponding period
of 2024, which was mainly due to the increase in storage expenses
of natural uranium inventories as compared with the corresponding
period of 2024.

Administrative Expenses

During the Reporting Period, the administrative expenses of the
Group amounted to HK$11 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 57% as compared with the corresponding period of
2024, which was mainly due to the incurrence of a non-recurring
external donation expense in the corresponding period of 2024.
Furthermore, the management fees and consultancy fees also
decreased as compared with the corresponding period of 2024.

Share of Results of a Joint Venture

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s share of results of a joint
venture amounted to HK$128 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 39% as compared with the corresponding period of
2024, which was mainly due to the decrease in profit of Semizbay-U
as compared with the corresponding period of 2024 as a result of
the decrease in the spot price of natural uranium, which led to the
decrease in the Group’s share of results of Semizbay-U as compared
with the corresponding period of 2024.

Share of Results of an Associate

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s share of results of an
associate amounted to HK$178 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 24% as compared with the corresponding period of
2024, which was mainly due to the decrease in profit of Ortalyk as
compared with the corresponding period of 2024 as a result of the
decrease in the spot price of natural uranium, leading to the decrease
in the Group’s share of results of Ortalyk as compared with the
corresponding period of 2024.

B RBEEPFER

Hitt @& WA UR A @R ERFE

HESMA - AEEBEMEERARCES
BT BR024FRIH T E4I81% » TBIR
R BRI -

HER UM E
BEMP - AEEHE RS W BET
BT - 20244 BB NAG1% - B
RER R AT E A 8 B 820247 FI
EFt e

ITHRX

WEBAAN - AEETBHAZA1I1EEHE
TC 2024 F R AT RE4957% - EER
22024 F R HAZS £ —E IR T I EIMB
Y o o BEEERMEAER I
2024 F [RIEAB FT T EF -

Bl —BegbxEE

WEHEAN - AEBEGH—BEELEE
BER128AEBIL © B2024F R HE T4
39%  TERARKAMBEELEE -
HARNEFIE 2024 FRIHI PR - BEIAE
BRI A R ZEER2024F AT T % o

FEit — B E N R RE

WEHEAN - AEBEG—BBEQAE
BERITSAEBIL « B2024F R HF T4
24% » TERAR KA EELEE -
BARNRFEC024F RHI PR - BEALE
B (G BN R AT 2024F AT T % o

Interim Report 2025 = = AF P HiRE 21



Financial Review and Financial Capital

P RREPFER

Finance Costs

During the Reporting Period, the finance costs of the Group amounted
to HK$77 million, representing an increase of approximately 42% as
compared with the corresponding period of 2024, which was mainly
due to the year-on-year increase in annual average interest-bearing
debt scale in the first half of 2025.

Income Tax Expenses

During the Reporting Period, income tax expenses of the Group
amounted to HK$36 million, representing a decrease of approximately
83% as compared with the corresponding period of 2024, mainly due
to the provision of the current withholding tax based on the expected
tax for general dividends withholding tax rate as well as additional
provision and additional payment of the withholding tax on dividends
for previous years according to the best estimate of the management
of the Company due to the change in the tax environment in
Kazakhstan in 2024, which led to the increase in income tax
expenses in the first half of 2024. However, during the Reporting
Period, there was no such additional tax payment and income tax
provisions returned to the normal level.

Half-year Loss

During the Reporting Period, the loss of the Group amounted to
HK$68 million, representing a decrease of approximately 160% as
compared with the corresponding period of 2024, which was mainly
due to the the fact that on one hand, the unit cost of sales for the
natural uranium sales business of CGN Global, a member of the
Group, was higher than the unit selling price executed in the period
due to the impact of significant fluctuations in the price of contracts
for international trade in natural uranium, coupled with the fact that
inventories are accounted for by the weighted average cost method,
resulting in a decrease in the Group’s gross profit from natural
uranium trading as compared with the corresponding period of 2024;
on the other hand, the Group’s share of results of a joint venture and
an associate decreased as compared with the corresponding period
of 2024 due to the impact of a decrease in the spot price of natural
uranium.
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Financial Review and Financial Capital

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2025, the total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$8,579 million, representing an increase of 9% as compared
with that of HK$7,842 million as at 31 December 2024; the total
liabilities of the Group amounted to HK$4,709 million, representing
an increase of 20% as compared with that of HK$3,921 million as at
31 December 2024; and the total equity of the Group and the equity
attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to HK$3,871
million, basically the same as compared with that of HK$3,922 million
as at 31 December 2024.

Net Current Assets/Liabilities

As at 30 June 2025, the net current assets of the Group amounted
to HK$106 million, representing an increase of 136% as compared to
the net current liabilities of HK$292 million as at 31 December 2024.

Current Assets

MBREAEMBEER

BAFEAR R

H2025F6 A30H - AEBEERES
8,579B & BT 82024F 128318
7,842 BATEIN0%  AEBEAERE
4,700 &8 7T - B2024F 12 A31HAY
3,021 EHEEBITILIN20% : AEEESLR
BREARNQRER AELEZAS87T1EHE
VBIT 0 12024912 431 HHI3,922E B8
TEAEE -

RBEE AREFE

MN2025F6 300 » NEBREEEFE
B106BEEHBIT » 82024F12 A31 HHIR
A EFE22H & B LB MN136% °

RBEE

As at As at
30 June December Movements
2025 2024 b
Increase/ Increase/
20255 20244 (DECCERE) (DECICERE)
6830H 128318 #i,/C8d) i CRd)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 %
FExT FABTT FAETT %
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (=)
Inventories FE 2,175,849 2,158,335 17,514 1
Trade and other receivables  FEURBR RN K H 4tb fE U B 846,079 80,360 765,719 953
Amount due from a fellow  FEU—FE R R B
subsidiary A R)FRIE - 17 (17) (100)
Income tax recoverable AT B FT S B3R 92,091 47,503 44,588 94
Dividend receivable FEA B, 191,618 - 191,618 100
Bank balances and cash RITHEF MRS 1,365,087 1,153,789 211,298 18
Total current assets MENEEMBE 4,670,724 3,440,004 1,230,720 36

As at 30 June 2025, the current assets of the Group amounted to
HK$4,671 million, representing an increase of 36% as compared
with that of HK$3,440 million as at 31 December 2024, which was
mainly due to the sale of 526tU of natural uranium off-take business
by the Group to China Uranium Development, the immediate holding
company, from late May to June 2025, resulting in a temporary rise in
trade and other receivables.

20256 A308 F AEBRBEES
4,67T1EBEBIL  B2024F12A318K
3440EBHBEIT EFH36%  TBFRA/AN
EER2025F5AKE6 AMM - mMERE
2R A a2 B R SH B 526tU R AR B
BIHE S - (P IEUERTR S FE U GRIAE
BFME Tt o
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Financial Review and Financial Capital

MBREEMNBER

As at 30 June 2025, the aggregate amount of bank balances
and cash of the Group was approximately HK$1,365 million (31
December 2024: HK$1,154 million), of which 0% (31 December
2024: 0%) was denominated in HKD, 99% (31 December 2024
99%) was denominated in USD, and 1% (31 December 2024: 1%)
was denominated in RMB. The Group did not have any bank deposit
pledged to any bank (31 December 2024 nil).

Non-current Assets

E’\2025¢6H30E| C A REBEHARIRTT

HEIF IR 41,3658 &8 7T (2024
¢12H31 H:1,1548&%7L) - HF0%
(20244F12A31H : 0%) AETT * 99%
(2024128318 : 99%) BFEJTt 1%
(2024128318 : 1%) BARE - K&
B & A RIT AT WG IR 1T (20245
12A31H : &) -

FRBEE

As at As at
30June 31 December Movements
2025 2024 &
Increase/ Increase/
R2025%F 20244 (Decrease) (Decrease)
6A30H 12R318  #EmCRd) i/ (i)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 %
THERT TETT FET %
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Property, plant and equipment — #1%  BiE &% 611 770 (159) 1)
Right-of-use assets EREEE 3,943 4,693 (750) (16)
Financial assets at fair value BARBEAEMEE
through other comprehensive W2 & BIEE
income 417,129 355,889 61,240 17
Interest in a joint venture R—TRErE R 491,040 641,143 (150,103) (23)
Interest in an associate R—EBENF 2 Exn 2,995,313 3,399,334 (404,021) 12)
Other receivables H A USRI 470 448 22
Deferred tax assets BEFMEHEE 6 6 - -
Total non-current assets ERDEELE 3,908,512 4,402,283 (493,771) (11)

As at 30 June 2025, the non-current assets of the Group amounted
to HK$3,909 million, representing a decrease of 11% as compared
with that of HK$4,402 million as at 31 December 2024, which was
mainly due to dividends received from Semizbay-U and Ortalyk during
the Reporting Period, leading to the decrease in interests in a joint
venture and an associate.
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Current Liabilities

Financial Review and Financial Capital

MBREAEMBEER

REAE

As at As at
30 June 31 December Movements
2025 2024 &
Increase/ Increase/
R2025%F 20244 (Decrease) (Decrease)
6430H 12R318  #Em/CRd) i/ (i)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 %
THERT TETT FET %
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Trade and other payables JE S BRSR e A A
1A 1,170,407 796,857 373,550 47
Loans from a fellow subsidiary KB —FRZHM B A
8% 2,667,747 1,395,914 1,271,833 91
Loan from an intermediate RE—EPEERAR
holding company g3 49,345 - 49,345 100
Bank borrowings RITE 604,896 1,519,996 (915,100) (60)
Lease liabilities HERE 1,580 1,534 46 3
Amount due to an intermediate & — R EHERR A
holding company A 11,666 12,058 (392) 3)
Amount due to fellow FERR R KB A BFIE
subsidiaries 1,101 1,385 (284) (21)
Dividend payable FEAHRAR A 53,205 - 53,205 100
Income tax payable JERT SRR 4,457 4,444 13 0
Total current liabilities mEE ERE 4,564,404 3,732,188 832,216 22

20256 A308 » NEBE RS ARG A
4,564 B BB - B2024F12A31HK
3,7RFEBITLFR22% - FERER
FEZEREE AR —HERZRKBA
AIERREEDBMRITEROGEELER -

As at 30 June 2025, the current liabilities of the Group amounted to
HK$4,564 million, representing an increase of approximately 22%
as compared with that of HK$3,732 million as at 31 December
2024, which was mainly due to combined result of the drawdown
of the loans from a fellow subsidiary and partial repayments of bank
borrowings by CGN Global.
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Financial Review and Financial Capital

MBREEMNBER

Non-current Liabilities

FRBEE

As at As at
30 June 31 December Movements
2025 2024
Increase/ Increase/
20255 R202445 (Decrease) (Decrease)
6830H 12A318 &/ Ci4) i ()
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 %
TET BT FA&T %
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (=)
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,460 3,065 (605) (20)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIEAR 141,653 185,328 (43,675) (24)
Total non-current liabilities ~ JERBI & E4AE 144,113 188,393 (44,280) (24)

As at 30 June 2025, the non-current liabilities of the Group amounted
to HK$144 million, representing a decrease of 24% as compared with
that of HK$188 million as at 31 December 2024, which was mainly
due to dividends received from Semizbay-U and Ortalyk during the
Reporting Period, leading to the corresponding decrease in related
deferred tax liabilities.

Total Equity

As at 30 June 2025, total equity of the Group amounted to HK$3,871
million, basically unchanged from HK$3,922 million as at 31
December 2024.

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Company’s gearing ratio
(total liabilities/total equity) was approximately 122% (31 December
2024: 100%).

26 CGN Mining Company Limited 1 EAzTE £ AR A 7

20256300 - AEEFERBAEER
144B BB T - 5202412 A31HAKI188
AEBITTM24% - TEZFRAAHREHN
WEH AR - BABIDA - ABRRELER
BEEEHAETRE -

BEAE

MR2025%6 83008 » AEEEZFEE
3,871EBE BT * f2024F12A31HH
3, 9220B BAETTALRIEF -

WEHKR - ARREABEBELR(AER
1B,/ REz5 4818) 4 53122% (2024412 B 31
H :100%) °



Financial Review and Financial Capital

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2025, the Company had a total of 7,600,682,645
ordinary shares in issue (31 December 2024: 7,600,682,645
ordinary shares), and the market capitalisation of the Company was
approximately HK$18,470 million (31 December 2024: HK$12,389
million).

Liquidity Risk and Financial Resources

As at 30 June 2025, bank borrowings of the Group were HK$605
million, denominated in USD with floating interest rate, unsecured with
interest rates ranging from approximately 4.73% to 5.60% per annum
and a remaining term of one year. Borrowings from an intermediate
holding company were HK$49 million, denominated in RMB with a
remaining term of one year. These loans with fixed interests were
unsecured, with interest rate of approximately 2.87% per annum.
Loans from a fellow subsidiary amounted to HK$2,668 million,
denominated in USD with a remaining term of one year. These loans
with floating interests were unsecured, with interest rates ranging
from approximately 4.59% to 5.27% per annum.

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Company monitors its cash
and cash equivalents and unutilized credit facility in real time. As
at 30 June 2025, the Group had unutilised borrowing facilities of
USD1,603 million and RMB5 million, which can be utilised to provide
sufficient cash for the operation of the Group and reduce the impact
of cashflow volatility.

The Group has sufficient financial resources for its daily operation and
business and does not have seasonal borrowing demands. If any
suitable merger and acquisition opportunity arises in the future, the
Group will raise funds from diverse financing channels.

B RBEEPFER

BBER
RIS

2025964300 © AREIHBEITE
FAY7,600,682,6450% (2024412 A 31
H :7,600,682,645/0% @) - MELD
18,4708 BB T (2024%F12A311 -
12,389 E &E L) °

TRED M LB R B ER

202596 A30H « AL EIRITHE K605
BEBIT - LWETFHE - FSRBRA—F
W ZEZEERABEEARFNERAN
T4)4.73% £5.60% © 2K B — i+ &
NAMBERABI9BEBTT - UARKES
B FpBRA—F  ZZETHEER
BEERRFENERNH2.87%  RE—H
BREWBARZENR2,668HEBT * N
EEE  FBHRA—F  ZFFE
ERREERRENEEN FH459%F
5.27% °

ABERRBERR  ARFEREIZERS
RBeZEEE URRBANBEEKT -
M2025F6A30H « A&EE#HAF1,6038
EETRSEBARBRIENNREE
B AIASBEKERERENESIER
[HEBSMEBTE -

AEEBRAVBEREHEEEERH

% - B BAFHIERERTR - HRE
BENHERE  AKRERFBZ T

MRERBEEEEST -
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Financial Review and Financial Capital

P RREPFER

Financing Model

Given the complex and ever-changing financial market, the Company
has been exploring diverse financing methods and strives to establish
a financing model combining short-, medium- and long-term capital,
merging direct and indirect financing and multiplying financing
channels to secure stable funds for the Company. When conducting
debt financing, the Company has taken a balanced approach
between cost and safety. The Company aims to obtain competitive
financing cost but the lowest financing cost is not its sole objective
to avoid compromising financial safety and the quality of services
received. For projects with large capital expenditures and sound
expected returns, the Company will prudently consider using equity
financing to balance risks and enhance Shareholder value.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk and Currency Policy

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s sale and purchase of
products were mainly settled in USD and RMB (corresponding period
of 2024: USD and RMB). Daily expenses of the Group, including
administrative expenses, selling and distribution expenses, were
mainly settled in USD, HKD and RMB (corresponding period of 2024:
USD, HKD and RMB). The Group did not enter into any forward
contracts, interest or currency swaps, or other financial derivatives
for hedging purposes, nor did it experience any material difficulty or
negative effect on its operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations
in currency exchange rates.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2025, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2024 nil).

External Guarantee and Charge of Assets

As at 30 June 2025, the Group did not provide any guarantee for
any third party outside the Group nor was any of the Group’s assets
subject to charge (31 December 2024 nil).
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(@)

The Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation

As at 30 June 2025, the interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations held by the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company (as defined in Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, as recorded in the register referred to therein, or which
were required pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange are as follow:

Personal
Name of Director interests
EEME PN £
Ms. Xu Junmei -
REBELZL
1. Such shares were held by the spouse of the Director.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2025, none of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company had any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(as defined in Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required pursuant to
the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Disclosure of Interests

(@)

Other
interests

Hth i

120,000

EERSESTHRAEREATRE
IRESEZE 2R - EERERE
ERPZEEZRRE

R20259F6 4308 * ARAIEER
EETTBABRAR T & EH AR
B (EXREFREEEMEXV
&) ®uix{n - ABRER D R EEE
b HBREBEESRBABGRAE
XVEET7R8D HEMERNFR
BRXMER AR (BIERE
BHREAEGAARIECHEEE
SAREHB R RKE) iR
BES LAIE KO 35216 E A
TEGFHE R MRS e s Rk
B IRIRIRETFRIF A ARNAF]
NIRRTz R MR B IR

Percentage
of issued share
Number of capital of
shares the Company
HAEABRE BT
R EE BREBDL
120,000 0.00%

1. ZERHDBERZRIBHA -

Br DA E SN - 10202546 A
308 * ARRIEEREHTTHRAR
BERARRLEEREE (&
REFLIERPIEXVER) MR
0 ARk RERET - EAR
R LB RPIEXVEET RS
7 BRI E RN F M A P R At
Koge (BREREES: S GRD
BRGXEREERR ERA R
@mRRR) ¢ BREEFRHER
fFIF 35215 E B TR FRE LM
Frecscmgm oAk R  IURIRIRE
STRIB MG AR F M3 A 2 #an
KRR
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Disclosure of Interests

EFRRRRAA TR RERRD
hZEBERKR

R2025%F6 4308 A REIRE
FBENMEEGNEICIERTEFTE
MEDM BRESTELEES
ABFAMSIER - THIAL B
(TREARRESXESITHRA
B) AR ARG RAAREAR ()
BIRBEH KB BRHIEXVEBE2
K37 EAG SR M AN A &) 4 55 6O 4

(b) Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions (b)
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

As at 30 June 2025, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO and so far as
is known to, or can be ascertained after reasonable enquiry
by the Directors, the following persons/entities, other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had an interest
or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO:

Name of shareholders

BREH

Substantial shareholders

Capacity

af

HAAR

Number of
shares et

Hﬁﬁg B (1)

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding (et
BARRE 2 b w

FERE
CGNPC Motes2and3) Interest in controlled corporation 4,288,695,652 (L) 56.43% (L)
Bl Bz B (R REEE R
CGNPG-URC Motes2and Interest in controlled corporation 4,288,695,652 (L) 56.43% (L)
th R % 2Ry RELERR
China Uranium Development Beneficial owner 4,278,695,652 (L) 56.43% (L)
hEMEER EREBA
Person having a security interest in shares 10,000,000 (L)
FARDORERROA
Other shareholders
AMRE
China Chengtong Holdings Group Limited.* ™4 Interest in controlled corporation 659,300,000 (L) 8.67% (L)
hEBEEREEAR AR M REEEER
The China State-owned Enterprise Mixed Interest in controlled corporation 659,300,000 (L) 8.67% (L)
Ownership Reform Fund Co., Ltd.* ¢4
HEEECEREMAHNEERSARAR " FEAERR
Chengda Holding Limited ¢4 Beneficial owner 659,300,000 (L) 8.67% (L)
HERRBRRR ERBAA
State Street Bank & Trust Company Approved lending agent 440,873,494 (P) 5.80% (P)

State Street Bank & Trust Company
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Notes:
1. (L) - Long Position, (P) — Lending Pool.

2. CGNPC held the entire equity interests of CGNPC-URC, which in turn held the
entire share capital of China Uranium Development. Therefore, each of CGNPC
and CGNPC-URC was deemed to be interested in the interest held by China
Uranium Development.

3. The long position included (i) 4,278,695,652 shares held by China Uranium
Development; and (ji) the interests in 10,000,000 shares pledged by a third party.

4. According to information provided by China Chengtong Holdings Group Limited*,
Chengda Holding Limited is wholly-owned by The China State-owned Enterprise
Mixed Ownership Reform Fund Co., Ltd. (the “Mixed-ownership Reform
Fund”), which is in turn owned as to 34.23% by China Chengtong Holdings
Group Limited*. Accordingly, each of China Chengtong Holdings Group Limited
and the Mixed-ownership Reform Fund is deemed to be interested in the interest
held by Chengda Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person as
at 30 June 2025 who had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

None of the Company, or any of its holding companies or
subsidiaries, or any fellow subsidiaries, is a party to any arrangement
which enables the Directors or chief executives of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to have
any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

Disclosure of Interests

ERIEE

BT -

1. LR P)—FHEHRED -

2. FREEZEERA T EZMENDBBRARE
i MR ER I ER A T B R A 2 R
Ao B REEZEE R EZHES AW
B T B R R R AT A R -

3. AT B AE() R Bl B R A 194,278,695,652
BRA1D  Ke(i)—% 5 = 77 #H##910,000,0004%
A& RO AR 2 o

4. ZHREBEREEER AT MERZER -
MERRERATMTERELEEEHRE
HAERESARAB(NRRER) 2EHE -
MmA B EEEEEERARFSERELES
34.23%H) Rtk o EUt - REBBEREER
RARFORRES S BRSR AR BUERRER
AR AR STREA R

B EXXPr#EESN - BiE 202566 A30H -
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BB TORR ©
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Other Information

Hf & ¥

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any share
option scheme or any outstanding share option.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES,
AND COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

With effect from 12 March 2025, Mr. Qiu Xianhong resigned as
an INED, the chairman of the Audit Committee, the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee; Ms. Dai Qijia was appointed as an INED, the chairwoman
of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee as well as a member
of the Independent Board Committee (as defined in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 June 2025); and Mr. Zhang Yuntao, an INED,
has been re-designated from a member of the Audit Committee to
the chairman of the Audit Committee. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 12 March 2025 for further details.

With effect from 15 April 2025, Mr. Wang Xianfeng ceased to be the
chief executive officer of the Company and has been re-designated
from ED to NED; Mr. Yin Xiong resigned as a NED; and Mr. Qiu
Bin has been appointed as an ED and re-designated from the
vice president of the Company to the chief executive officer of the
Company. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 15
April 2025 for further details.

With effect from 30 June 2025, Ms. Dai Qijia resigned as an INED,
the chairwoman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee as
well as a member of the Independent Board Committee (as defined
in the Company’s announcement dated 3 June 2025); and Mr. Wu
Yingpeng was appointed as an INED, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee as well as a member of the Independent Board
Committee. With effect from 30 June 2025, Ms. Xu Junmei, an ED, was
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee. Please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2025 for further details.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this report, there has been no change in the information of the
Directors and chief executives as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company (including the
sale of treasury shares) during the Reporting Period. As at 30 June
2025, the Company did not hold any treasury shares.
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SHARE CAPITAL

As at 30 June 2025, the total share capital of the Company was
7,600,682,645 shares.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had 17 employees (30 June 2024:
27 employees), of which eight were located in Hong Kong, and nine
were located in the UK.

The remuneration arrangement for each employee is commensurate
with their performance and comparable to the prevailing market rates.
The Group values internal training of employees and also encourages
staff to pursue continuous development through external professional
training programs, so as to improve their abilities to meet challenges
and increase the market competitiveness of the Group. Total staff costs
during the Reporting Period amounted to approximately HK$8.38 million
(six months ended 30 June 2024: approximately HK$12.25 million).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the distribution of an interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2025 (six months ended
30 June 2024: HKO0.3 cents).

REVIEW OF INTERIM RESULTS

The unaudited interim financial statements of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2025 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the external auditors of the Company, BDO.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee of the Board in
compliance with the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange with written terms
of reference. The Audit Committee comprises two INEDs and one NED,
serving as an important link between the Board and the auditors. The main
responsibility of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board by providing
independent opinions on the effectiveness of the financial reporting
procedures, internal control and risk management systems of the Group.
During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held one mesting.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group in preparing the Group’s unaudited
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2025 and
discussed the auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters with the management. The Audit Committee also reviewed
and adopted the Group’s unaudited financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2025, and is of the opinion that such
statements had complied with the applicable accounting standards,
the Listing Rules and the relevant legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

Other Information
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Other Information

Hf & ¥

MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the standard of
securities transactions for Directors. All Directors confirmed, upon
specific enquiry by the Company, that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting
Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as its
corporate governance policy.

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. From 1 January 2025 to 14 April 2025, Mr. Wang Xianfeng
was both the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer
of the Company. The Board believed that Mr. Wang Xianfeng serving
as both the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of
the Company would ensure consistent leadership and operations. In
order to make a clearer distinction between the responsibilities of the
chairman of the Board and those of the chief executive officer of the
Company, the Board has appointed Mr. Qiu Bin to serve as the chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from 15 April 2025.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code during the Reporting Period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company has issued a notice and circular on 25 July 2025
for convening an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
regarding certain continuing connected transaction, certain major and
continuing connected transaction and certain connected transaction.
Please refer to the notice and circular for further details.

On 19 August 2025, the ordinary resolutions approving the above-
mentioned continuing connected transaction, major and continuing
connected transaction and connected transaction were duly passed
by the Shareholders by way of poll at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company.

Other than that, no material events affecting the Group that need to
be reported to the Shareholders after the Reporting Period.
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Report on Review of Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

AR AR S M IRk EHRE

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

|IBDO

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
3% 1 +852 2218 8288 BETHERI15E
{8H : +852 2815 2239 Kk&H2548
www.bdo.com.hk
To the Board of Directors of CGN Mining Company Limited B EXEEGRAT
PEZEEBRAAE BExg
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (RHASESTMX L2 BRAR)
INTRODUCTION 515

We have reviewed the condensed interim consolidated financial
statements set out on pages 37 to 82 which comprise the condensed
interim consolidated statement of financial position of CGN Mining
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) as of 30 June 2025 and the related
condensed interim consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, condensed interim consolidated statement
of changes in equity and condensed interim consolidated statement
of cash flows for the six-month period then ended, and notes to
the condensed interim consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information (the “interim condensed
consolidated financial statements”). The Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
require the preparation of a report on interim financial information to
be in compliance with the relevant provisions thereof and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (‘HKAS 34”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the condensed interim consolidated
financial statements in accordance with HKAS 34. Our responsibility
is to express a conclusion on the condensed interim consolidated
financial statements based on our review. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Report on Review of Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

‘F”EHEP iR e M HRREHRE

SCOPE OF REVIEW

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Review Engagements 2410 “Review of Interim Financial
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued
by the HKICPA. A review of interim financial information consists
of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial
and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we
would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

CONCLUSION

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the condensed interim consolidated financial
statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with HKAS 34.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

LAI Cheuk Wai

Practising Certificate no. P07921

Hong Kong, 26 August 2025
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FAPHFeEEREM2ERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H LL<EA
2025 2024
20255 202445
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BiEE FHET T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RSB (REEEZ)
(Represented)
(&%)
Continuing operations FEMEK
Revenue EER 4 1,708,681 4,072,652
Cost of sales SHEMA (1,955,475) (4,129,084)
Gross loss E%| (246,794) (56,432)
Other operating income and HAtb AT A LA R B Ath U
other gain or loss, net ok E 1R E R 5,854 31,427
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R HHAX (7,594) (5,030)
Administrative expenses THAX (11,354) (26,244)
Share of results of a joint venture EiE—EAEREERA 127,570 208,000
Share of results of an associate B — RS AR LS 178,001 234,208
Finance costs BhERK AR 5 (77,263) (54,417)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB AT (B1R) B8R (31,580) 331,512
Income tax expenses Fsfi i 6 (35,990) (210,756)
(Loss)/profit for the period from REFEMEBNHR
continuing operations (E8) HF 7 (67,570) 120,756
Discontinued operations BARILET
Loss for the period from discontinued REBKRIEEBHER
operations, net of tax B8 - MRTHIE - (7,634)
(Loss)/profit for the period R (5518) %R (67,570) 113,122
Attributable to Owners of the Company ~ ZAA F1HEA A FE(E
— from continuing operations —REFEMEER (67,570) 120,756
— from discontinued operations —REERIEES = (7,634)

(67,570) 113,122
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

AP HGEERaRAMME2ERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H LL/EA
2025 2024
20255 202445
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEZ) (REEZ)
(Represented)
(&%)
(Loss)/profit for the period R (B518), =R (67,570) 113,122
Other comprehensive income: Hth 2 EWKE :
Items that will not be subsequently R T oEH HHEER
reclassified to profit or loss: @I IHE -
Fair value gain in financial assets at far A A Bt AEMMEE
value through other comprehensive Wz eREEY
income N ERE 61,240 -
Items that may be subsequently B8 I=2F sy sy =Ly
reclassified to profit or loss: ZHE -
Exchange differences on translation of ~ 2E ] B A R 7R %
financial statements of subsidiaries EACEHESR (27,092) (5,506)
Exchange differences on translation of & —A& LD EEK
financial statements of a joint venture WMEREEVZIERER 9,527 (5,593)
Exchange differences on translation of & & N GBI IEIRE
financial statements of associates EECERER 26,113 (31,167)
Release of exchange reserve upon RRRE & — g
deemed disposal of an associate NAEREE I E - (8,499)
Total comprehensive income for the Z&2QFEF AEGR
period attributable to owners of the ZHEUKE4%E
Company 2,218 62,357
Attributable to Owners of the Company 22 B & AL
— from continuing operations - REFENER 2,218 78,490
— from discontinued operations - REBKRIEER - (16,133)
2,218 62,357
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BRPHReRERAMEEKER

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

Six months ended 30 June

BZ6A30A L/~ EA
2025 2024
2025%F 20244
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT F#IT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REEEZ)
(Represented)
(&%)
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (B8 BF
Basic BN
— from continuing operations - REFHE T HK(0.89) cents  HK1.59 cents
(0.89)7& L 1,597l
— from discontinued operations - REBRIER N/A  HK(0.10) cents
TER (0.10)7%41L
— From continuing operations and - REFBEUEB K HK(0.89) cents  HK1.49 cents
discontinued operations BRI ER (0.89)3&A1L 1,497 11l
Diluted e
— from continuing operations - REFEEER HK(0.89) cents  HK1.59 cents
(0.89) &l 1,597l
— from discontinued operations - REERIEER N/A  HK(0.10) cents
TERA (0.10)7% 1L
— From continuing operations and - REFBEUEB R HK(0.89) cents  HK1.49 cents
discontinued operations BB (0.89)7811L 1497811l
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& B R A AR & B IS AR R

As at 30 June 2025 71202556 H30H

30 June 31 December

2025 2024
20254 20244
6H30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FBT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERK) (&%)
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R KR 10 611 770
Right-of-use assets EREEE 11(a) 3,943 4,693
Financial assets at fair value through other ¥R A2 E:F A E (2T
comprehensive income B DREE 417,129 355,889
Interest in a joint venture R—EE& s 12 491,040 641,143
Interest in an associate R—EBE AR 2 13 2,995,313 3,399,334
Other receivables Ho U SR TE 15 470 448
Deferred tax assets BRETIAEE 6 6
3,908,512 4,402,283
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 535 14 2,175,849 2,158,335
Trade and other receivables FEU AR TR I EL A B U T8 15 846,079 80,360
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary El—EREMBARFE 22 - 17
Income tax recoverable AT E ATS IR 92,091 47,503
Dividend receivable e AR = 191,618 -
Bank balances and cash RITEFLES 16 1,365,087 1,153,789
4,670,724 3,440,004
Total assets EEHE 8,579,236 7,842,287

40 CGN Mining Company Limited f EZTE £ AR A7)



Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& B R H AR & B B AR L R

As at 30 June 2025 7202556 H30H

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
20255 20244
6H30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRT FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (RE#H%)
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables ENERREMENRE 17 1,170,407 796,857
Loans from a fellow subsidiary RE—HRREWBARZ
= 18 2,667,747 1,395,914
Loan from an intermediate holding ’E—EPEERARZ
company B® 19 49,345 -
Bank borrowings IRITIER 20 604,896 1,519,996
Lease liabilities HEBE 11(b) 1,580 1,634
Amount due to an intermediate holding JEAT — R AR A AR
company 18 21 11,666 12,058
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries R RNBARFIE 22 1,101 1,385
Dividend payable FERTAR B 53,205 -
Income tax payable FE TSR R 4,457 4,444
4,564,404 3,732,188
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (A FE 106,320 (292,184)
Total assets less current liabilities BEEABRABERS 4,014,832 4,110,099
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBRE 11(b) 2,460 3,065
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 141,653 185,328
144,113 188,393
Net assets BEEFE 3,870,719 3,921,706
Capital and reserves BERRF#E
Share capital A 23 76,007 76,007
Reserves [#h 3,794,712 3,845,699
Total equity ERBE 3,870,719 3,921,706
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR RS EES R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

Eqity atiributable to owners of the Company
KRR AELRR

Fair value
through other
Exchange  comprehensive Share
Share Share ~ translation income options Reserve Retained Other
capital premium reserve reserve resenve fund eamings reserve

RAARHA

Hedana
BhikE Extiie #F  EREEE  mREC REEH
HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
7 Tz Tin o117 Tr 7

(Note 2)

]
At January 2025 faudted) iRl 76,007 2447454 (966,020) (25,468) 154 14583 2404360 (129,364 3921,706
Lossorthe peiod EngE - - - - - - (67570) - (67570)
Other comprehensiv inoomg TARARRENE:
forthe perod:
Fairvalue gan i fancial assefs FRAEAEhRENE,
atfrvls trough o SREEIDAEME
comprefiensive ncome - - - 61,240 - - - - 61,40
Exchenge ifeences on ensaton REMBLERRR
of fnancial stetements o sbsidrks ERJERzR - - 27080) - - - - - (27,09
Bxchenge ifences on fensaton RE-AaebEilER
of nancial setements ofa ot ventue EEVERZE - - 9521 - - - - - 95
Fichenge difzences o ensaton AE-EREDTIRER
offnancil statements of an associte EE/ERER - - %113 - - - - - %113
Totd comprehensive noome forheperiod — SMAENELEE - - 8548 1,240 - - 67570) - 2218
Dividonds decred BEE - - - - - - (53206 - 33209
30 June 2005 naded RABEORE (REEH) BT 1T B L |11 . K 1)
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B HES

Eﬁﬁﬁ%

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

Equy attrbut ab\e fo ownerso he Company

Property  Exchange

Share revaluaion translation
capitl ‘ TeSene T6SEIVe
B ONREMEE  EXES

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§000 HKS'000
ThL T Thr Thn

options
reserve

é% i} %
HK$'000
o

Resenve Retaned Other

fund eammgs reserve
Whae  RERN  AbER it
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS000  HKSO00
Thn BT T

A anuary 2004 fucied HOUUE11R (55H) B T 4R 56 B 7S 2098 (0034 3%
Proft for the period Eiyg] - - - - - - 18122 - 13122
Other comprehensive ncome RERANRENE
forthe perod:
Exchange diferences on transiafon of - 2 EHEATHAER
fencia satements of subsidlaries 7 ENEE - - - (5,506 - - - - (,506)
Exchange dferences on tansationof & -FFAELEEE
fanca sttements ofajointventure.~ BEELZEREE - - - (.59 - - - - (599
Exchange diferences on tandationof BB ERFRIERR
financial Statements of associates Ef7ERE2 - - - (31,167) - - - - (31,167)
Reaseof echangereseneupon  HRRE E-FBELT
deemed disposa of an associte BELEL R - - - 3499 - - - - (6499
Total compreensie BREENaEE
income for the period - - - (50,765 - - 13122 - 62,307
Share of ot resenve of nassocite. B —REEDANENER - - - - - - - 3,266 3,266
AL 30 Je 2024 (naudie) HONMESRNA(RERH) BT 24T 40 (B 5 7R 2610 1Y AMGRl
Note a: The subsidiary in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) has appropriated Mizka: RPEARLNE ([FE])ZHBARCE
10% of the profit to reserve fund. The reserve fund is required to be retained in EAMI0%E R EFEEES - ZREES
the account of the subsidiary for specific purposes. BIRBRZMBARZRE N « LIERER
Note b: The other reserve represents (i) the difference between the consideration Matb ©  HALREEEOBRIEXRESI T 2 ¥4 1K

of United States dollars (“USD”) 133,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,030,899,000) and the aggregate paid-in capital of 1t 5§ & RIEE
BFRAR] (for identification purpose, in English, Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium
Resources Investment Company Limited, referred to as “Beijing Sino-Kazakh”)
of Renminbi 823,770,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$944,534,000)
acquired under business combinations under common control, (i) the difference
between the consideration of USD8,553,800 (equivalent to approximately
HK$66,335,000) and the aggregate paid-in capital of CGN Global Uranium
Limited (“CGN Global”) of USD3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,265,000) acquired under business combinations under common control
and (i) share of other reserve of associates.

B A9 {8133,000,000% 7T ([E5t]) GEE R
#71,030,899,0007 7T) 24t S s #ih & R 1%
ERRAR (LR Pas]) BEUERBEA
R #823,770,0007T (HHE 7 471944,534,000
EIT) I ER - ()VRBEXRIESI T 2%
A FHUREE A (88,553,800 7T (S 4
66,335,000 7T) B A [ 1% Bl PR 3 2 o 8 65
ARAR([FEXERHEEAT]) EHER
#8783,000,0003 7T (15 74 423,265,00078
TT) 2 B 2 BB e (i) PR A B i 1 B RO EL b
1 o
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
B HSGERERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

Six months ended 30 June

BZE6H30ALAER
2025 2024
2025% 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEER)
Net cash used in operating activities L ESAR S FRE (782,510) (742,459)
Net cash generated from investing activities RETHMBRESTH
Interest received EHH B 17,509 16,594
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EENE  BERLE (33) (16)
Dividend received from a joint venture, net of tax WE-feEtENRS -
MBHIR 249,906 201,117
Dividend received from an associate, net of tax | —REEg L R RS
BB 321,211 247,672
588,593 465,367
Net cash generated from financing activities RETBMERSTE
Cash repayment in inventory lease BEEFEHERS - (534,170)
Interest paid on loans from an intermediate FRRE—EREERAR
holding company EFFE - (126)
Interest paid on bank borrowings FIFRITERAFE (42,812) (25,821)
Advance of bank borrowings RITIE BN 604,896 1,133,793
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITER (1,519,996) (348,979
Advance of loans from a fellow subsidiary kE—THRRHBARMN
EFER 1,271,833 -
Advance of loans from immediate holding company ~ REBEZER A AIMERER - 155,102
Advance of loan from an intermediate KA —HPEERARER
holding company ZB% 49,345 37,128
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHREEE (559) (698)
362,707 416,229
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RekReEAEEEEINTH 168,790 139,137
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January WA1BZR e MBS EEEE 1,153,789 1,017,239
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEE FE 42,508 (16,053)
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June, R6A30RRE MREFEIER -
represented by bank and cash balances BISRIT IR & A5k 1,365,087 1,140,323
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B R A AR S B BS SRR B AL

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

GENERAL

CGN Mining Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its parent company is F R iHEZEEGR A
A] (China Uranium Development Company Limited) (“China
Uranium Development”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of f1 EixEEREH
R 2 7] (CGNPC Uranium Resources Co., Ltd.) (‘CGNPC-
URC”), which is in turn a subsidiary of B EZEEBR A
7] (China General Nuclear Power Corporation) (“CGNPC”).
CGNPC is the ultimate parent of the Company. Both CGNPC-
URC and CGNPC were state-owned enterprises established
in the PRC.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to the “Group”) are trading of natural
uranium and other investments.

The condensed interim consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") while the functional
currency of the Company is United States dollars (“USD”). As
the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors consider
that it is appropriate to present the condensed interim
consolidated financial statements in HK$.
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B P IR & B T SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 34, issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable disclosure
provisions of Main Board Listing Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. These condensed interim
consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on
26 August 2025.

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements
have been prepared with the same accounting policies
adopted in the 2024 annual financial statements, except for
those that relate to amended standards or interpretations
effective for the first time for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025. The adoption of the amendments to Hong
Kong Accounting Standards have no material effect on these
condensed interim consolidated financial statements. The
Group has not early adopted any new and amendments to
Hong Kong Accounting Standards that has been issued but
not yet effective in the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B R A AR S B BS SRR B AL

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

(a)

(b)

Application of amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standards

In the current interim period, the Group has applied
for the first time the following amendments to Hong
Kong Accounting Standards that are relevant to and
effective for the Group’s condensed consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on
1 January 2025.

° Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to HKAS
21)

The adoption of the above amendments to Hong
Kong Accounting Standards in the current period
has no material effect on the amounts reported and/
or disclosures set out in these unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standards that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The following new and revised Hong Kong Accounting
Standards, potentially relevant to the Group’s
condensed consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

o Amendments to Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments (Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7)';

° Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent
Electricity (Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7);

2. WEEERBAETTEHE

(#)

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B P IR & B T SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

(b)

New and amendments to Hong Kong Accounting

Standards that have been issued but are not yet

effective (Continueqd)

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11 (Amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 7)1

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements (HKFRS 18)?;

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clauses (HK INT 5)3;
and

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28)°

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2026

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2027

Effective for accounting periods to be determined
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B R A AR S B BS SRR B AL

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

New and amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standards that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Continueq)

Except as otherwise provided below, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standards will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18, which sets out requirements on
presentation and disclosures in financial statements,
will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. This new HKFRS Accounting Standard,
while carrying forward many of the requirements in
HKAS 1, introduces new requirements to present
specified categories and defined subtotals in the
statement of profit or loss; provides disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in
the notes to the financial statements and improve
aggregation and disaggregation of information to be
disclosed in the financial statements. In addition, some
HKAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to HKAS 8 and
HKFRS 7. Minor amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also
made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2027, with early application permitted.
The application of the new standard is expected to
affect the presentation of the statement of profit or
loss and disclosures in the future financial statements.
The Group is in the process of assessing the detailed
impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

2. WEEERBAETTEHE

(&)

(b)
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

& B R HA AR S B TS SRR MY R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standards that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Continueq)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements (Continued)

The preparation of these condensed interim
consolidated financial statements in compliance with
HKAS 34 requires the use of certain judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses on a year to date
basis. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The areas where significant judgments and estimates
have been made in preparing the financial statements
and their effect are disclosed in note 3.

These condensed interim consolidated financial
statements contain condensed interim consolidated
financial statements and selected explanatory notes. The
notes include an explanation of events and transactions
that are significant to an understanding of the changes
in financial position and performance of the Group since
the 2024 annual financial statements. These condensed
interim consolidated financial statements and notes do
not include all of the information required for a complete
set of financial statement prepared in accordance with
the Hong Kong Accounting Standards and should be
read in conjunction with the 2024 consolidated financial
statements.

These condensed interim consolidated financial
statements are unaudited, but has been reviewed by
BDO Limited in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Review Engagements 2410, “Review of interim
Financial Information Performed by the Independent
Auditor of the Entity”, issued by the HKICPA. BDO
Limited’s independent review report to the Board of
Directors is included on pages 35 to 36.
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

3.

B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. HmEEENSEASHEE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea) (&)

(b)  New and amendments to Hong Kong Accounting b) CEEBGEMNRERZHFHF
Standards that have been issued but are not yet REETEBETERNE)
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial EBEY I EERE 185
Statements (Continued) HFH#HREESRIFE ()
The condensed interim consolidated financial AP HGREBE®RE D
statements have been prepared on the historical BRERAEERR -
cost basis except for financial assets at fair value BARBERFAEME K
through other comprehensive income and investment W ERMEAEREBREME
properties, which are measured at fair values. AR AR ERTE °

USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 3. BRAHERMEE

In preparing these condensed interim consolidated financial MR RZEEAP HLRE s mEk
statements, the significant judgements made by the BREY - BEEEREAREESE
management in applying the Group’s accounting policies and RO B VE () RO B2 K I BT M Al 5T e
the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as FERENF B RIRE2024F FE
those that applied to 2024 annual financial statements. WISz FTERAEER -

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. ZXFER7HER

Revenue from continuing operations represents amount REFEMNER 2 & HEAHE
received and receivable from sales of natural uranium, net of MBREE  AFFHNRBEEE
returns, discounts allowed and sales related taxes during the BB RAMIBEE 2 DU ELGK
period. Revenue recognised during the period are as follows: 18 - BINEREFEHEOT -

Six months ended 30 June
HZ6H30B IEXEA

2025 2024

20254 20244

HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEZX) (COREZEZ)

Revenue e

Sale of goods HEEM 1,708,681 4,072,652
The revenue from sales of goods were recognised at a point REHEE MmN & EHIRIEE A
in time and under HKFRS 15. TSRS 2ER S 155 A — ISR 20 7R

=7
o
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B P IR & B T SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information reported to the chief executive officer (“CEQO”),
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had
reorganised its internal reporting structure which resulted in
changes to the composition of its reportable segments. Two
operating segments regarding the property investment in the
PRC and interests in Fission in Canada were discontinued in
the year ended 31 December 2024. The segment information
reported in note 4 does not include any amounts for these
discontinued operations. Prior period segment disclosures
have been represented to conform with the current period’s
presentation.

Specifically, the Group’s reporting segment are as follows:

a) natural uranium trading segment engages in trading of

natural uranium in the UK and Hong Kong; and

b) other investments segment engages in interest in (i) a
joint venture and (i) an associate in Kazakhstan.
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. ®EHENSHER @
(Continued)
Segment revenue and results DEPEERER XA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results REBRAREDFZ2INBARN &
by reportable segment for the period: HEBREESWET
Six months ended 30 June 2025 B ZE2025F6 H30H LA

Natural
uranium Other
trading investments Total
RAME 2 HiiRE st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT Fi# T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER)  REER)  (REER)

Continuing operations BEMER
Revenue EEH 1,708,681 - 1,708,681
Segment (loss)/profit DE(EE) S m (261,930) 305,571 43,641
Other operating income HAEERA 5,972
Finance costs BB (77,263)
Central administrative costs R RATERA AR (3,930)
Loss before taxation from REAFHEMERR

continuing operations BRERIER (31,580)
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR S B S SRR Y R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. ®#¥mLoIEr e

(Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continueqd) PEEEERER (B
Six months ended 30 June 2024 (Represented) B ZE2024F6H30HLAEA (B

51)

Natural
uranium Other
trading investments Total
AAHE 5 Hink& st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THIT FAT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(g =% (g =) (REER)

Continuing operations BEMER
Revenue EXRE 4,072,652 - 4,072,652
Segment (loss)/profit A (E18) 57 (71,702) 450,707 379,005
Other operating income EfE g 22,928
Finance costs BUERA (64,417)
Central administrative costs R RITIRE AR (16,004)
Profit before taxation from REFHEHEBH

continuing operations BR T A& A 331,512
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the KESIH G RRERNERE,
same as the Group’s accounting policy information described FE2024F12A31HIEFEZ2F
in note 4 of the Group’s annual consolidated financial A SRR M 4TI 2 A EE
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024. Segment BEBERERAER - 28 (B58)
(loss)/profit represents the (loss)/profit incurred/earmned by each S FAE & D ESFTE £, WAL Z (&
segment without allocation of other operating income, finance 18), % H - WARDEEAML LI
costs and central administrative costs. This is the measure A BUERA R RITEEA © 1
reported to the CEO, being the chief operating decision maker TSt E RS BL MR BR A A & E
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance TE(REE2EERERE)WME 25T
assessment. o
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable segment:

EEBEROIPER &

THMEEREE

REBRAREDH2INZEER
BESNWT

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
202545 20244
6H30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RI&EZ) (BEZ)

Segment assets PEEE
Natural uranium trading RINIE 5) 2,994,820 2,217,024
Other investments EmRE 3,903,482 4,040,477
6,898,302 6,257,501
Unallocated corporate assets RO ARIEE 1,680,934 1,584,786
Total assets BERE 8,579,236 7,842,287

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025% 20244
6430H 12A31R
GLELY HK$'000
TEx THT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (&%)
Segment liabilities ZEEE
Natural uranium trading RARHE 5 4,495,541 3,717,209
Unallocated corporate liabilities ADEARRIR 212,976 203,372
Total liabilities AfRRE 4,708,517 3,920,581
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B P IR & B T SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than bank balances and cash, income tax recoverable,
deferred tax assets and other assets for corporate use
(including certain property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and other receivables).

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than amounts due to an intermediate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries, income tax payable, deferred
tax liabilities and other liabilities for corporate use
(including certain other payables and lease liabilities).

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
(“HKSAR”), the PRC, Kazakhstan, Canada and the United
Kingdom (“UK”).

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from external customers is presented based on
the geographical location of the operations. Information about
the Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. ®#¥mLoIEr e
(Continued)

Geographical information (Continued) Hif &R (&)

Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets
RENMBEFHEREA FREBEE
Six months ended As at As at
30 June 30 June 31 December
EZ6H30HLAEA 2025 2024

2025 2024 20254 20244
20254 20244 6A30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT THERT FAT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER)  (REER)  (REER) (&=

PRC e
(other than HKSAR) (BBRRITHERRIN 753,428 892,346 20 20
HKSAR EAEATRE 175,048 2,034,739 1,893 2,413
us e 493,384 365,441 - -
UK HE 147,734 - 2,641 3,030
Europe (other than UK) BUM (ZEIRRSM) 139,087 708,779 - -
Canada nex - 71,347 - -
Kazakhstan g e - - 3,486,353 4,040,477
1,708,681 4,072,652 3,490,907 4,045,940
Note:  Non-current assets excluded financial instruments, other receivables Misk: FERBDEETBESBIA  Eith
and deferred tax assets. FEEIE EERIEAE -
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR S B S SRR Y R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. ®#¥mLoIEr e

(Continued)

Information about major customers BREXEEFZEHR

Revenue from customers of the corresponding periods AT YR B AR ARG AR &
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as BIHEEERBIONNRPL 2 &%
follows: #

Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H LB A

2025 2024

20255 20244

HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHETT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) CRIEEZ)

Customer A’ LS 753,428 892,346

Customer B! LYV 205,477 N/A2

i 2

Customer C! PR 175,048 1,590,838

Customer D' ERT N/A2 443,901
TiE A2

! KERARME S0 A2 EHEER

! Revenue from natural uranium trading segment

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 2 MEAEBETRBEASEEBEE
revenue of the Group 210%
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B P AR & B I SRR R

5.

6.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on loans from

5.

K e —HERRKE AR

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

AR

Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H LLNEA

2025

20255

2024
20244
HK$’000
FAT
(Unaudited)
(R ER)

HK$°000
TET
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

a fellow subsidiary ExFBZ T 36,022 33,792
Interest expenses on loan from REEEERARRER
immediate holding company FEZH - 872
Interest expenses on loan from an KB — M EERA R
intermediate holding company BRHFEX T 707 908
Interest expenses on bank borrowings  $R/TERFE T T 40,396 18,809
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENSEXZH 138 36
77,263 54,417
INCOME TAX EXPENSES 6. FIE®Bi%H
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H L EA
2025 2024
2025 20244
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RESEX) (REEZ)
Current tax: BUEARRIE
- UK Corporation tax — B ER - 3,113
- PRC Corporation tax —HRPER (22,989) -
— Kazakhstan withholding tax — e iE R AR TEIR TS HE 102,654 164,527
79,665 167,640
Deferred tax: FEERIA
— Current period — 7N HAfE (43,675) 20,599
— Attributable to change in tax rate — RSB PTEL - 22517
(43,675) 43,116
35,990 210,756
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& B R HA AR S B TS SRR MY R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

6.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of qualifying corporation will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
For the six months ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, the Hong
Kong holding company was in loss-making position and
accordingly did not have any assessable profit.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% for the six months ended
30 June 2025 (for the six months ended 30 June 2024: 25%)).
For the six months ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, the PRC
subsidiary did not have any assessable profit.

UK Corporation Tax

The subsidiaries operating in the UK are subject to Corporation
Tax Act of UK and the tax rate of the UK subsidiaries is 25%
for the six months ended 30 June 2025 (for the six months
ended 30 June 2024: 25%). For the six months ended 30
June 2025 and 2024, both subsidiaries in UK did not have any
assessable profit.
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B R A AR S B BS SRR B AL

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Kazakhstan Withholding Tax

Pursuant to the Tax Code (Revision Edition) enacted since
January 2023 in Kazakhstan (the “New Tax Code of
Kazakhstan”), dividends paid by subsurface users to foreign
shareholders without permanent establishments in Kazakhstan
will be subject to the Kazakhstan withholding tax at the rate of
10% fif (i) the dividends are not paid to the entities registered
in the List of Countries with Preferential Tax Regime; (i) the
holding period of shares or participation interest is more than
three years; (i) subsurface users undertake further processing
(after primary processing) of a prescribed percentage of the
mineral raw materials extracted by its own production facilities
in Kazakhstan or owned by its affiliated resident entity in
Kazakhstan; and (iv) the distributed income was earlier levied
with Corporate Income Tax.

Semizbay-U Limited Liability Partnership (“Semizbay-U”)

The Group has held shareholding in the joint venture,
Semizbay-U for more than three years and all extracted
minerals of the joint venture are further processed in its own
production facilities, the dividends received by the Group from
the joint venture are subject to the Kazakhstan withholding
tax in accordance with the provisions of the New Tax Code
of Kazakhstan. For the six months ended 30 June 2025 and
2024, Semizbay-U is subject to Kazakhstan withholding tax at
10%.

Pursuant to the EIT Law, the earnings distributed from
Semizbay-U to the Mainland China subsidiary of the Company
is subject to tax if the tax rate under EIT Law is higher than
the tax rate under the New Tax Code of Kazakhstan. The
applicable tax rate is the difference between the tax rates
under EIT Law and the New Tax Code of Kazakhstan. For the
years of assessment of 2025 and 2024, as Mainland China’s
income tax rate of 25% is lower than the Kazakhstan’s total
tax rate, which is the sum of income tax rate of 20% and
withholding dividend tax rate of 10% under the New Tax Code
of Kazakhstan, the Mainland China subsidiary is not subject to
tax in this regard.

6.

FB#HX%H®

BERAERREREH

BIEE2023F 1 A RBMBIGIER
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IR E B R EIE AR R B
HACR A TE S 8118 i T & R (E
SEANRRE ~ AL FHREEA10% B
MIERATIBTEIRAAEH - &« ()&
B AR FES S FEERHIER
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& B R HA AR S B TS SRR MY R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

6.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Mining Company “ORTALYK?” LLP (“Ortalyk”)

Ortalyk is an associate of the Group and the dividends
received by the Group from Ortalyk are subject to the
Kazakhstan withholding tax in accordance with the provisions
of the New Tax Code of Kazakhstan. Since the Group has
held shareholding in Ortalyk for more than three years and all
extracted minerals of the associate are further processed in its
own production facilities, the dividends received by the Group
from the associate are subject to the Kazakhstan withholding
tax in accordance with the provisions of the New Tax Code
of Kazakhstan. For the six months ended 30 June 2025,
Ortalyk is subject to Kazakhstan withholding tax at 10%. For
the six months ended 30 June 2024, the dividends received
by the Group from Ortalyk are subject to 15% Kazakhstan
withholding tax.

Cayman Islands Income Tax

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands for both periods.

Pillar Two Rules

The Group is operating in certain jurisdictions where the
Pillar Two Rules are effective or enacted but not effective.
However, as the Group’s estimated effective tax rates of all
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates are higher than
15%, after taking into account the adjustments under the
Pillar Two Rules based on management’s best estimate, the
management of the Group considered the Group is not liable
to top-up tax under the Pillar Two Rules.
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B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

7.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 7.

(Loss)/profit for the period has been arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

i (E518) %R

A (&18) S F TRk (G
A) TFBIRIESIRR

Six months ended 30 June
B.Z6H30H LA A

2025 2024

2025%F 20244

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBEZX) (REEER)

Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 1,955,475 4,129,084
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB LERETE

equipment 192 181
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 750 792
Interest income from fellow subsidiaries & & 7 ZMB 2 T EFLEUA (17,268) (10,434)
Bank interest income HRITALEWA (241) (4,794)
DIVIDEND 8. RKE

2024 final dividend declared B EIR2024 K HAA% 2
- HK0.7 cents per share — &/%0.77811

Six months ended 30 June
BZE6H30H LLAfEA

2025 2024

20255 20244

HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEZ) (REEER)

53,205 -

No dividend has been paid during the current interim period.
The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of an interim dividend for the six months ended 30
June 2025 (for the six months ended 30 June 2024: HKO0.3
cents per share).

A ER AR - BE AR (AT AR
B o RARBEEWTEZRRNEH
Z2025%F 6 A30H 175 A K+ E
BB (B Z2024F6 A30A [E/~E
A+ §8R0.371) -
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B R AR S B S SRR Y R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

9. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

BR(ER), BT

ARRHRBE ARG EREARET
(E518) /BRI TR T PSR & -

Six months ended 30 June

B.Z6H30H LA A
2025 2024
2025%F 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHx T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEZ) (REEEZ)
(Represented)
(&%)
(Loss)/earnings (B58) &7
From continuing operations REFENER (67,570) 120,756
From discontinued operations RE DK IEETE - (7,634)
(67,570) 113,122
Number of shares BRBEE

BREHH SRR
(&518),/BFIZ
o

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating
7,600,682,645 7,600,682,645

basic (loss)/earnings per share

The diluted (loss)/earmings per share is equal to the basic (loss)/
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares during both periods.

For the six months ended 30 June 2024, the Group’s former
associate, Fission Uranium Corp. (“Fission”), has issued share
options to employees, directors, officers, and consultants,
as well as warrants to underwriters through the bought deal
financing, granting the right for the share options and warrants
holders to subscribe the ordinary shares of Fission. The
diluted earnings per share was the same as basic earnings
per share as the effect of these potential ordinary shares was
anti-dilutive.
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B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

10. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 10. EXFX
The movements of property, plant and equipment and Y%~ BB RS E R EENE
investment properties are as follows: AT

Property,
plant and
equipment

Sy
HK$’000
FET

Six months ended 30 June 2025 #,£202546A30H Lt

(Unaudited) ANMEA CREEXK)
Carrying value at 1 January 2025 53202591 A1H Z BREE 770
Additions NE 33
Depreciation charged for the period ZANHARE 2 #1& (192)
Carrying value at 30 June 2025 202596 4308 Z ARHEIE 611

Property,
plantand  Investment
equipment properties

e

'ils  REDE t

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT TAET TAET

Six months ended 30 June 2024  EH E2024%6 A30H |-

(Unaudited) ~NEA CREgERZ)
Carrying value at 1 January 2024 1202441 A1 8 2 BREE 1,076 39,141 40,217
Additions =T 16 - 16
Depreciation charged for the period ZANHAfd 2 #& (181) - (181)
Changes in fair value of investment &Mz A BEEH

properties - (12,159) (12,159)
Exchange realignment bE 5 % - (226) (226)
Carrying value at 30 June 2024 202456 4308 Z REIE 911 26,756 27,667

The net decrease in fair value of investment properties KEMERIARBERL FELY

amounted to approximately HK$12,159,000 was recognised
in profit or loss as presented as discontinued operations for
the six months ended 30 June 2024.

12,159,000/ TTE R E 22024 F6
A30H IE/NMEA RSB R IEER
REVIEZERERR o
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B R AR S B S SRR Y R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

11. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE 1. ERAREEREEAR

LIABILITIES

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FHEEE
As at 30 June 2025, the carrying amounts of right- MR20256F6 8308 + BT
of-use assets were approximately HK$3,943,000 EMAENFEREEERE
in respect of the leased offices. As at 31 December {E4953,943,0008 7T ° i
2024, the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets were 2024%12A381H - B@HA
approximately HK$4,693,000 in respect of the leased EMAENERAEEERE
offices. {B49/54,693,000/ 7T °
During the six months ended 30 June 2024, there EH Z=2024%F6 4308 [F~E
were additions to the right-of-use assets amounted A RAFHEAH=FH
to approximately HK$2,997,000 due to new lease of WA= FAREERE
office with a term of three years. #92,997,000/5 7T °

(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
As at 30 June 2025, the carrying amount of lease MR20256F6A30H - FHEH
liabilities was approximately HK$4,040,000 (31 BRI RRE(E 4 /4,040,000
December 2024: HK$4,599,000). BT (2024F12H31 8 -

4,599,000 7T) °

()  Amounts recognised in profit or loss (c) REZEINESE

Six months ended 30 June
HZE6H30HLL<ER

2025 2024

2025% 20244

HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBEZ) (REEER)

Depreciation expense on right-of-use  {FRAEEE 2 FTER S

assets 750 792
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEIMERAZ 138 36
Expense relating to short-term leases B HAE R 2 870 824

(d)  Others (d Hf

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, the total #HE2025F6 H30H L7~
cash outflow for leases amounted to approximately A -HENReRLES
HK$1,429,000 (six months ended 30 June 2024: #51,429,000/8 7T (B =
approximately HK$1,522,000). 202496 A30R 1L/~ 1EA -

#11,522,00078 7T)
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B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

12. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 12. R—EEeEtEoEn

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025%F 202445
6H30H 12H431H

HK$°000 HK$’000
TET FHETT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (&%)

Carrying amount as at 1 January M A1TEMEREEE 641,143 550,389
Share of post-acquisition results FEMR U B8 A HARE, ANFE
and other comprehensive EERAMEERES
income for the period/year 127,570 399,402
Dividend received B B (291,996) (223,731)
Exchange realignment M 34, 38 B 14,323 (84,917)
Carrying amount as at period/year end  ANHifE,ANFE K ERE(E 491,040 641,143
Details of the joint venture as at 30 June 2025 and 31 202596 A30H Kk2024F12 A
December 2024 are as follows: 31BMZEEDEFBAT
Place of incorporations Percentage of
establishment and Class of ownership held by
Name of entity Form of entity operation shares held the Group Principal activities
FREfE
BEEH By AMRUREE R  FERGER REERDL TEERED
Semizbay-U Limited liability Kazakhstan Ordinary shares 49% Extraction, preliminary
partnership processing and sale
of uranium oxide on
Semizbay and Irkol fields
BN EREMAH ERAA LAk 49% RE - S MIRIEE
Semizbay ¥ Irkol&
#& (ks
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B R AR S B S SRR Y R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

13. R—RBEBE AT 2R
LHHE AT

13. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Listed associate

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
20254 20244
6H30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEX) (& E%)
Carrying amount as at 1 January A1 A1AMEREE - 582,006
Gain on deemed disposal R RS - 1,771
Share of post-acquisition results and FE(R U g 18 A HARE,
other comprehensive income for the REEHEE
period/year REMMEERE - (79,485)
Disposal during the period/year RAEIRE AFELRE - (512,456)
Share of other reserve for the period/year FEfGZSHARE, NS H b - 8,164

Carrying amount as at period/year end

AHIR,AFEEARREE

Unlisted associate

FETHEDT

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
20254 20244
6H30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEFZ) (&%)
Carrying amount as at 1 January M A1TEMERE 3,399,334 3,363,011
Share of post-acquisition results and ANERRE A G UEE A
other comprehensive income for the FEREMEE RS
period/year 178,001 604,322
Dividend received B S (356,901) (440,336)
Dividend receivable FEUAS B, (191,618) -
Exchange realignment P& 5 A EE (33,503) (127,663)
Carrying amount as at period/year end ~ FAZARHEARE,AFEARNEEE 2,995,313 3,399,334
Total carrying amount of listed and A RIE ETEE A A
unlisted associates HERE 428 2,995,313 3,399,334
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13.

B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 13. R—EBE QR z#E®
Unlisted associate (Continued) FLHBE AT E)
Details of the associate as at 30 June 2025 and 31 December M2025%6 A30R K&2024F12 A
2024 are as follows: STREZZEE R RIFIBWT
Place of incorporations Percentage of
establishment and Class of ownership held by
Name of entity Form of entity operation shares held the Group Principal activities
rEEfE
BRER By EMAUREERE  FERGER RERESL TEXHED
Ortalyk Limited liability Kazakhstan Ordinary shares 49% Extraction, preliminary
partnership processing and sale of
uranium products and
resources on Central
Mynkuduk field and
Zhalpak field
NG BREAEH g LRk 49% RE - IS MIRIEE

Central Mynkuduk &2
ReZhalpak & SEHER

k&R
Note: B e -
As at 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024, the management of the Group 202556 A30H 2024F12A31H » A%
considered that there was no indication of impairment loss. BERERS  FHESBEIFRIETFE -
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B R AR S B S SRR Y R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

14. INVENTORIES 14. FE

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025%F 202445
6H30H 12H431H

HK$°000 HK$’000
TET FHETT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (&%)

Uranium h 2,175,849 2,158,335
During the six months ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, H E2025%F 20246 A30H 1k
there was no provision of impairment of inventories. The ANER - METERERE - FE
net realisable value of the inventories have been determined B A BN R E T AN AR R I &S
based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the WA SERE - WREEEFEHE
estimates are made, with reference to the weighted average SRRMETFHEEBmMEE - I8
sales price in accordance with signed sales contracts, which T HEFEMEREE S TE
are the amount the inventories are expected to be realised in BOGFESBRELUBEEMEEES
the time period the inventories are expected to be sold and (El

the subsequent sales price of similar items.
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B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FE W R X % EL At FE YRR IR

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025%F 202445
6H30H 12H431H

HK$°000 HK$’000
TET FHETT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (&%)

Trade receivables (Note a) FEUBR R (Pt 5Ea) 818,380 53,246
Prepayments, deposits and TENFEIE - 2k
other receivables (Note b) E e deziaE (FdaEb) 28,169 27,562
846,549 80,808
Analysed into DA
Current portion RENEL S 846,079 80,360
Non-current portion IERBNE D 470 448
846,549 80,808

The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.
At 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024, there was no loss
allowance provided.

Note a:  As at 30 June 2025, trade receivables of HK$753,353,000 (31
December 2024: HK$53,246,000) represent amount due from the
immediate holding company, China Uranium Development.

Note b:  As at 30 June 2025, included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are interest receivables of approximately HK$3,242,000
(31 December 2024: HK$62,000) and HK$10,625,000 (31 December
2024: HK$5,243,000) are due from CGNPC Huasheng Investment
Limited (“CGNPC Huasheng”) and CGN Finance Company Limited
(“CGN Finance”), fellow subsidiaries of the Company, respectively.

REEW BB Z S HERITH T
1B n o 7202596 A30H Kk20244F
12A318 - REENWKRFHEEE
B o

MitTa: M20259F6A308 - fEUEE K
753,353,000/ 7t (2024412 A 31
H : 53,246,000/ 7T) AREKERE
TRR A B B R R A RIS ©

MisEb : 202596 A30H + FEMFKIA » &
S REMBURESEREARA
AR R ER AR ERERRE
BRAR ([HPEERER]) RHEZ
MHARETRR ([HEZME])
) FE U B 5 B 493,242,000/ 7T
(2024912 A31H : 62,000/ 7T)
210,625,000/ 7T (2024512 A 31
B : 5,243,000/87T) °
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B R AR S B S SRR Y R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group normally grants to its trade customer credit periods
for natural uranium segment within 15 days to 120 days (31
December 2024: 15 days to 120 days) after delivery dates for
the six months ended 30 June 2025 and for the year ended
31 December 2024.

The following is an ageing analysis of the trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates
the respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Within 30 days 30RK

15.

P LT R 0 I L it P U SR IR
(%)

HZE2025%6 A30H IL/<1E A RE
FE2024F12A31BIEFE - A%
ERERAAMAOTETHESLR
FPERN AN F15KE120
X (2024512 A31H : 15K&E120
RIMEEH -

TXARBEMR - NEFHEE
HEREHEENERRAHAEE
2 FEYRRARER AT -

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025%F 20244
6H30H 12H31H
HK$’'000
FAET
(Audited)
(&%)

HK$’000
THET
(Unaudited)
(REERK)

818,380 53,246
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B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

16. BITEERES

30 June 31 December

16. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

2025 2024
2025%F 202445
6H30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FHETT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RAEEFX) (REEZ)
Bank deposits: RITIFK
Cash at bank and on hand RITEETF RIRE 1,365,087 1,153,789
Analysis of bank balances and RAEAR,AEERD
cash at the end of the period/year: BITHEFRIReHT
Cash at bank and on hand RTEFMERS 7,551 6,156
Cash placed at CGNPC Huasheng TR EZER K
and CGN Finance (Note) BRI SRR (M) 1,357,536 1,147,633
1,365,087 1,153,789

Note:

The balance is unsecured, interest bearing at rates ranging from 3.60%
to 4.09% (31 December 2024: 5.1%) per annum and recoverable on
demand.

On 16 June 2022, the Company renewed the financial service
framework agreements with CGNPC Huasheng and CGN Finance for
a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2023 and ending
on 31 December 2025 (the “Agreements”).

Under the Agreements, the directors of the Company consider that
these deposits made to CGNPC Huasheng and CGN Finance is
qualified as cash and cash equivalent as the Group can withdraw the
deposits by giving notice to meet its short-term cash commitments
and without suffering any penalty.

ZEFEREER  RENXNT
3.60%%4.09% (2024412 A 31
B 5.1%)FEART ZE A
m -

H2022F6A16H + AAFHEHAE
RER R P BRI ER %R
SIERWE - B2023F1A18#E
Z2025%12A31H1E - AH=F
(IZEwHE)D) -

REZSH=  ARREERR
EAR R E RSB B 3 TR AR IR
SEEpAR e R EHMReEERT
BREZEAEE  FERTERE
BRPEZMBOERAERER
ReMREEHERR -
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR S B S SRR Y R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

17. ENERERREMESFRIE

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
20254 20244
6H30H 12 A31H

HK$°000 HK$’000
FER T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (= %)

Trade payables (Note a) FERTBRR (P 5Ea) 841,965 766,634

Accrued expenses and FEETHAZ K
other payables (Note b) H b FE S 518 (BT 3EDb) 328,442 30,223
1,170,407 796,857

Note a: Trade payables of approximately HK$291,246,000 (31 December
2024: HK$18,545,000) and HK$479,954,000 (31 December 2024:
HK$748,088,000) represented amount due to a joint venture of the
Company, namely, Semizbay-U and an associate of the Company,
namely, Ortalyk, respectively.

Note b: Included in other payables, approximately HK$714,000 and
HK$43,089,000 (31 December 2024: HK$183,000 and
HK$7,067,000) are interest payable due to CGNPC-URC and CGNPC
Huasheng, respectively and approximately HK$277,306,000 (31
December 2024: HK$NIl) is the cash received in inventory lease
arrangement as described in the Group’s accounting policy information
as set out in note 4 of the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the Reporting Period:

Within 30 days 30K A

fista : FENBEFAI291,246,0007% 7T (2024
F12A318 : 18,545,000 7T) &
479,954,000/ 7T (2024512 A 31
B : 748,088,000/ 1) 7 Bl A REAT
ARE—HEEECERRAARAR
A — B & A R R A RIAFRIE -

fistb © EAbRERFRIBRIESD RIS EX
3 N P AR ZE R AV714,000%8 7T
143,089,000/ 7T (2024412 A31
B : 183,000 7t 27,067,000/
TL)HEMFEREKFERER
3R £ #9277,306,00078 7T (20244
12A318 : T#i) © FRHEAR
EEHE2024F12A31ALFE
BELRE W REM 4P 2 A
EEEHIRER -

R|BER - REBERRAHZT 2
e BRARZ BRER DTN T -

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
20254 20244
6H30H 12H31H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBFX) (&%)

841,965 766,634
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

18. LOANS FROM A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY

Loans repayable on 7 November 2025,
unsecured and interest bearing
at rates ranging from 4.59% to

MIRFRENT4.50%%
5.27%T B2 EFR

A2025F11 A7 HEZE « EKH

18. mg—aa%mgaaz

TA

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
20254 20244
6H30H 12H31H
HK$’000
FAT
(Audited)
(& E%)

HK$’000
FHRT
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

5.27% per annum 1,395,914 1,395,914
Loans repayable on 18 December 2025, 202512 A18H &1 - &iKiH

unsecured and interest bearing KIRFFEN F4.83% %

at rates ranging from 4.83% to 4.90%=T B2 BR

4.90% per annum 597,141 -
Loans repayable on 8 January 2026, 202641 A8HEE - EIKIHF

unsecured and interest bearing AR FE R E N F4.83% %

at rates ranging from 4.83% to 4.90%ET BB

4.90% per annum 674,692 -

2,667,747 1,395,914

The effective interest rate of the loans from a fellow subsidiary is
4.79% (31 December 2024: 4.79%) per annum.

19. LOAN FROM AN INTERMEDIATE 19.

HOLDING COMPANY

Loan repayable on 13 January 2026,
unsecured and interest bearing at
One Year Loan Prime rate per annum

FARFERR—FER
REEN KRGS 2EK

A2026F1 A13BEE - EKHF

RE—FEREMBARNERNE
BREFIR 54.79% (2024512 A 31

B 4.79%) °
RE—EHEZERATZ
BX

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
20254 2024%F
6H30H 12H31H
HK$’000
AT
(Audited)
(&E=%)

HK$’000
FHET
(Unaudited)
(REER)

49,345 -

The effective interest rate of the loan from an intermediate
holding company is 1.43% per annum.

KE—HFEERARZERNE
BREMZE/S1.43% °
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR S B S SRR Y R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

20. BANK BORROWINGS

20. RITER

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
20254 20244
6H30H 12 A31H

HK$°000 HK$’000
FER T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (= %)

Bank loans IRITER 604,896 1,519,996
Analysed into: DA
Current portion BN D 604,896 1,519,996

As at 30 June 2025, the Group has drawn down from
banks with a total amount of USD78,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$604,896,000) (31 December
2024: USD196,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,519,996,000)). The effective interest rate of the bank
borrowings is 5.02% (31 December 2024: 5.13%) per annum.

The repayment schedule of the above borrowings based
on the agreed terms of repayment granted by banks are as
follows:

ERHIN—FR

7

g

On demand or within one year ¥

#2025F6 A30H - AEBEHIR
77RELA ££78,000,0003 7T (415
#2604,896,0007% 7T) (2024F 12 B
318 : 196,000,000 7t (45K
1,519,996,000770)) ° RITHE K
M EBRFFIE A5.02% (2024F 12
A318 :5.13%) °

REBRITETOBHEERGR - L
AAEFREEEHEINT -

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
20254 20244
6H30H 12H31H

HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT TR
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

604,896 1,619,996
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21.

22.

23.

B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

AMOUNT DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE 21. BEN—BEHPEERQITRK
HOLDING COMPANY b1 |
The amount due to an intermediate holding company JEAT — R AR A R FRIB RN &
represents unsettled amount of the management service as 73 A RS R A B IR AR TS K
provided by and the expenses as paid by CGNPC-URC on RENEROREEIE -
behalf of the Group.
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on SRIBETHEER - TEr B RAREK
demand. 818 -
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW 22, FEW (BN RZRKBA
SUBSIDIARIES BIFIE
The amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, FEW (B R R B A RZIETY
interest-free and repayable on demand. IR TR ERARERIE
SHARE CAPITAL 23. BA
Number of shares Amount
BRHEE &8
HK$’000
FHET
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each BREEC.O1ELZ TR
Authorised: RE ¢
At 1 January 2024, 31 December 2024F1 A1H ~ 20245
2024, 1 January 2025 and 12A31H 20251 A1H &
30 June 2025 2025%6 A30H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 January 2024, 31 December 12024%F1 A18 ~ 202445
2024, 1 January 2025 and 12831H + 2025F1 A1B K
30 June 2025 20256 A30H 7,600,682,645 76,007
All the ordinary shares issued during the period rank pari RABBMAE R BT BREE
passu with the then existing shares in all respects. FTHEEHBEEROEZERSMH

fiz o
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR S B S SRR Y R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24, EBALRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the condensed interim FREGBA BRAR A I SRR AT R
consolidated financial statements during the six months ended HN  HE20255F 202446 A30H
30 June 2025 and 2024, the Group had the following material LENE R - RSB 2 A BB R A &
transactions with related parties during the period: MEARZIAT :
(a) Transactions during the period (a) HARS

Six months ended 30 June
HZ6A30A LAER
2025 2024
2025 20245

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR BT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEER)

Sales of natural uranium resources to China MR HERREER A )

Uranium Development B 753,428 892,345
Purchase of natural uranium resources from MARABERAHER (i)

Semizbay-U, including taxes (&%) (291,246) (389,395)
Purchase of natural uranium resources from MENABERAHER (i)

Ortalyk, including taxes (&%) (480,034) (593,240)
Management fee charged by CGNPC-URC TEZMENDRNERE (iv) - (2,648)
Interest income from CGNPC Huasheng REREZEROFSRA v) 6,091 10,389
Interest income from CGN Finance REFEZIBHF LA (vi) 11,177 45
Dividend income received from Semizbay-U REM R AURERE R EBA 291,996 223,463
Dividend income received/receivable from Ortalyk 78 B B 714CER, /U0

REMBA 548,519 389,853
Interest expense to CGNPC Huasheng AFhERER 2 HERAT (vil (36,022) (33,792)
Interest expense to China Uranium Development P BIERE 7 MEHYT (i) - (872)
Interest expenses to CGNPC-URC AT EZEE SR (ix) (707) (908)
Purchases of natural uranium resources B Swakop Uranium (Pty) Ltd (x)

from Swakop Uranium (Pty) Ltd, (“Swakop”) ([Swakop)) iEE XA

including taxes BR(EH) (137,236) -
Shared financial service fee charged by BRIz EREBRAA ()

Shenzhen Nengzhhui Investment Co., Ltd YR EBEZREE (309) -
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

Transactions during the period (Continued)

Notes:

)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viil

(ix)

(xi)

On 16 June 2022, the Group has entered into a new sales
framework agreement with CGNPC-URC for the sales of
natural uranium resources for a term of three years from
1 January 2023. Details are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 19 August 2022.

During the year 2024, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Semizbay-U for the purchases of natural
uranium resources for the year 2024 with other certain taxes
in relation thereon borne by the Group.

On 19 March 2025, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Semizbay-U for the purchases of natural
uranium resources for the year 2025 with other certain taxes
in relation thereon borne by the Group.

During the year 2024, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Ortalyk for the purchases of natural uranium
resources for the year 2024 with other certain taxes in
relation thereon borne by the Group.

On 27 March 2025, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Ortalyk for the purchases of natural uranium
resources for the year 2025 with other certain taxes in
relation thereon borne by the Group.

The Group entered into a service agreement with CGNPC-
URC for the administrative services provided by CGNPC-
URC.

The Group entered into a framework agreement with CGNPC
Huasheng to deposit amounts with CGNPC Huasheng and
generated interests from such deposits.

The Group entered into a framework agreement with
CGN Finance to deposit amounts with CGN Finance and
generated interests from such deposits.

The Group entered into a loan agreement with CGNPC
Huasheng to withdraw amounts with CGNPC Huasheng and
incurred interest expense for those loans.

The Group entered into a loan agreement with China Uranium
Development to withdraw amounts with China Uranium
Development and incurred interest expense for those loans.

The Group entered into a loan agreement with CGNPC-URC
to withdraw amounts with CGNPC-URC and incurred interest
expense for those loans.

The Group entered into a purchase agreement with a fellow
subsidiary of the Group, Swakop, for the purchases of
natural uranium resources with other taxes in relation thereon
borne by the Group.

The Group entered into a financial service agreement with
a fellow subsidiary of the Group, Shenzhen Nengzhihui
Investment Co., Ltd. for the shared financial services
provided by Shenzhen Nengzhihui Investment Co., Ltd.

24, AL &)
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AREE I o

(iii HR2024FFE - AEEHE
BABBR2024F i E
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

& B R HA AR S B TS SRR MY R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Group entered into three facility letters with
CGNPC Huasheng (as lender), pursuant to which
the Company can borrow from CGNPC Huasheng
for operation capital within of total borrowing
amounting to USD380,000,000 (31 December
2024: USD380,000,000) from time to time within
3 years from the first withdrawal. As at 30 June
2025, there was unused borrowing facilities
amounting to USD36,000,000 (31 December 2024:
USD200,000,000).

The Group entered into three facility letters with
China Uranium Development (as lender), pursuant to
which the Company can borrow from China Uranium
Development for operation capital within of total
borrowing amounting to USD1,350,000,000 (31
December 2024: USD1,350,000,000) from time to
time within 3 years from the first withdrawal. As at
30 June 2025, there was unused borrowing facilities
amounting to USD1,350,000,000 (31 December 2024:
USD1,350,000,000).

The Group entered into a facility letter with CGNPC-
URC (as lender), pursuant to which the Company can
borrow from CGNPC-URC for operation capital within
of total borrowing amounting to RMB50,000,000
(81 December 2024: RMB50,000,000) from time to
time within 3 years from the first withdrawal. As at
30 June 2025, there was unused borrowing facilities
amounting to RMB5,000,000 (31 December 2024:
RMB50,000,000).
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(b)

(c)

(d)

24, BABALRE ®

REBEEPEZER (F
BEFRNIL=ZMHER
WE - Bt - AAFEBEE
RERBEN=ZFA -
TE 4218 X %8380,000,000
EL (202412 A4318
380,000,000%7T) A »
ATRRPEZERBA
BEeAREEESBYE -
MR2025%F6A30H © X&)
A f& 5% @8 & 36,000,000
%7 (2024127318
200,000,000 7T) °

REEEPBEHERR(E
BEFRNEL=ZMHER
WE - Bt - ARAEB88
RIERARO=FRN &
42183 %81,350,000,000
E70 (2024128318
1,350,000,000%7T) A » 7]
TRRAEHEZEREA
BSHANEEASRE -
MR202546 8308 © KB
fE @& E1,350,000,000
70 (2024128318 ¢
1,350,000,000%7T) °

AREBEFEZME (ER
BERANILERBE
Bt - ARBIABEHXRER
HEMN=ZFR  EHRER
EAR®50,000,0007T
(2024%F12A318 « AR
50,000,0007T) A + A FBF
A EZBEEAES A
RNEEESBEE - R2025
F6H30H + XEFAEER
B1E #E AR ®5,000,0007T
(2024F 128318 « ARE
50,000,0007T) °



Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B P AR & B I SRR R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z&202596 A30H 1-7~1E A

24,

25.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(e) The remuneration of directors of the Company during
the period was as follows:

24.

BEALTRE ®

() MAHBMARRESZH
N

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6H30H IEXEA
2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RIBER) (REEEZ)
Short-term benefits KEHATE A 1,087 1,174
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF 25, TETECZAAREE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the condensed interim consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
assets or financial liabilities are categorised is determined on
the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified in their
entirety into only one of the three levels.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

BRERAIIRZeREER TR
af

ARBERRR @ WEHERAER
AP SR BEREIIRZSRE
EleRABZREEREARE
GEE=I

DMREER

CTHEELTRABEMBNAAE
EMIHIRBEHRAABEAEETRNKR
BEERBAEMEE

THEENERARERBEIEE

=fEEREH—E -

NAEERDRATEER

- FA-HEREEXRENE
BTISHHmE CREFHE)
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR S B S SRR Y R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025 &; Z=2025%46 A30H 1E7~1E A

25.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

— Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

— Level 3 —inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

As at
30 June 2025
20255

6A30H
HK$'000

TR

Financial assets SREE

Listed equity securities presented as 27| AR 24 Eit AL 2
financial assets measured at far ~ EMEENEREEL
value through other comprehensive - A&

417,129

income (‘FVTOCI’)
As at
31 December
2024
20245
12A31H
HK$'000
TEx
Financial assets PHREE
Listed equity securities presented ~ 23ARL A EFFALME 355,889
as financial assets measured at AR ENEREEL
FVTOC LTIRAES

Valuation technique - equity investments

For Level 1 equity investments classified at FVTOCI, the Group
uses the closing market price as at reporting date per share
multiplied by the number of shares held.
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- F_R-EELRBEMNEE
(BB %) Sk fa & (AL B AR HE
B ABEBAE BAFS—
AR H BRI

— FEA-ARERABEDS

BENEERBERAE (T
ABEBAE) -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

E L B8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TER

417,129 - -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

-] =R B4

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTER TR

355,889 - -

hERMN - RARE

EAREF AR EE KRS8
ME—EBRAREMS - AEER®
RS B & A W B SR AP
RIRNEA -



“Audit Committee”

[EZEEE]

“BDO”

IVAELEE

“Board”

[EEg]

“Canada”

PIEFN

“Central Mynkuduk Deposit”

[P

“CGN Global”

[ EZBERRHE A F]

“CGNPC”

[MPEEZEE]

“CGNPC-URC”

[ EAZ

“China Uranium Development”

[MPE#HEER]

means

=
B

means

=1
B

means

=1
B

means

B

means

means

means

means

means

Definitions

Bx

the audit committee of the Board.

EFZeERL8g -

BDO Limited.
BAVERRETMEBMARATA] -

the board of Directors of the Company.
RARERE -

Canada, a country in the northern part of North America.

MEX - B—ELPIEEMILEEEEK -

the central plot of Mynkuduk deposit in South-Kazakhstan region in
Kazakhstan, which is owned and operated by Ortalyk.

RIS TE T HTIR EA A & o HT B b (R /Y P B i o SR A PR3 3R - R
AIEERER -

CGN Global Uranium Ltd, a company incorporated and registered in
England and Wales with limited liability and a subsidiary of the Company.
P EAZ BIRE S E M E B R A A)*(CGN Global Uranium Ltd) @ — 1R & 55
BELEBRLEEEMEKINEREEAF  RARRZMERR -

China General Nuclear Power Corporation* (ff B EZEB AR A A]),
a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and the sole
shareholder of CGNPC-URC.

TEEZEEGRAR  RPBEKZZBREERR  RPEZMEL
ME—PRER ©

CGNPC Uranium Resources Co., Ltd.* (R EZHEEREER AR,
a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and the sole
shareholder of China Uranium Development.

PEZMEERBRAF  RPBENIZBREEAR - A EHERE
2 ME—RRER o

China Uranium Development Company Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

REHMERRERAT  REBAMKL2BEREERA  AREZE
PRAZER °
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Definitions

“Company”
NS I EARNC
“controlling shareholder”

[ERRAR |

“Corporate Governance Code”
[fbEERTA

“Director(s)”

[E=%]

“ED(s)’
[FH1TEE]

“Fission”

[Fission’A &1

“Group”
[REE sk [5E ]

“GWe”
[GWel

“HK$” or “HKD”
[%7tl

“Hong Kong”
(&8
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means

means

B

means

B

means

=1
B

means

=]
B

means

means

=
=]

means

=
H

means

=7
=]

means

1=
H

CGN Mining Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.

B IEE AR A A)*(CGN Mining Company Limited) » A FF 2 8 & 71
PRIz BREERT - R ER L -

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules.
ERLTHRAETZE% -

Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

ETRAIMERCIFESIMREE AR

the director(s) of the Company.
AAFVESE -

the executive Director(s) of the Company.

RRBHITES °

Fission Uranium Corp., a Canadian-based resource company, the entire
shares of which were, as announced by Paladin, acquired by Paladin and
the shares of which were delisted from the Toronto Stock Exchange on
24 December 2024.

Fission Uranium Corp. * —XNUMEXAEEM 2 ERATR] - EE2HRMDE
Paladin’x @44 ¥ (40Paladin A RIFTE ) + Eikfp B 12024F 12 524 B¢
Zim%BHRX DR

the Company and its subsidiaries.
RRABREMBAR -

Gigawatts of Electricity.
ERES

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.
B BEZETEEE -

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC.
PERBRITTRIE -
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“Irkol Mine”
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“Listing Rules”
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“Model Code”
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“natural uranium”
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Definitions

Bx

the independent non-executive Director(s) of the Company.
RARVENLIFAITES ©

the Irkol mine located in the Kyzylorzhinsk area, 20 kilometres from
the town of Chiili in Kazakhstan, which is owned and operated by
Semizbay-U.

FEREIFIBEIL - 7 BB B R 2 5o T3 Chiili#E20 2 B BE 2 Kyzylorzhinskith,
& AHARHEBEREIRE -

the Republic of Kazakhstan.
i e 52 AT 3B L AN ER o

Joint Stock Company National Atomic Company “Kazatomprom”, a
joint stock company established according to the laws of Kazakhstan
with limited liability, which holds 51% equity interest of Semizbay-U and
Ortalyk.

WBIERAMABBRR R TAE T ¥ QA" (Joint Stock Company National Atomic
Company “Kazatomprom”) @ —SAIRIKIGTE 7o AR AR B D A &) -
FAMRAIMBRAIS %ER °

pound.

5 o

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
B PeE s EARA -

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.
AR BIMERCIAME M T EITAE T ETE R HHIREFA o

uranium ore concentrate in the form of triuranium octaoxide.

NBAE =g RE 2 ShRE R -

the non-executive Director(s) of the Company.

RRBPERITES ©
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“Nomination Committee”
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&
I
o

“Paladin”

[Paladin’2 @]

“PLS Project”

[PLSIEE |

“PRC” or “China”
(B

“Reporting Period”
[ HA

“RMB”
[ARE]

“Remuneration Committee’

[FEEZE &)
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the nomination committee of the Board.

EFEeR%L8g -

Mining Company “ORTALYK” LLP, a limited liability partnership established
in Kazakhstan, with the Company holding 49% of its equity interest
through its wholly-owned subsidiary and recognised as an associate of
the Company.

BEAFEBEZTRBRETEEDEE" (Mining Company “ORTALYK”
LLP) - ARMERANEAK I 2 AREEE R X - REARRBE AR
RATEBEEME R AE H49%E o

Paladin Energy Limited, a company incorporated in Australia focusing
on the development of natural uranium, listed on the Australian Stock
Exchange with the stock code “PDN”, on the US OTCQX with the stock
code “PALAF” and on the Toronto Stock Exchange with the stock code
“PDN".

Paladin Energy Limited © — Kl AR AR TR 00 B3 AT R A ShF B 8Y
ANA] - ARSEPDNIPBR AR D FHRZ ST LT - LARIRTPALAFI RS
BIOTCQXZZ 55 L RIARSR[PDNIR Z e Z 5 S L o

Patterson Lake South project, being Paladin’s primary and wholly-owned
asset.
Patterson Lake South’B B * IR APaladn ARz T E N2 EHAEE °

The People’s Republic of China.
hE ARARME o

the period from 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025.
2025%1 1B %E2025%6 A30H Hif#H -

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC.
ARE  hEZEEEE

the remuneration committee of the Board.

E=gFMERS -
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“share(s)”
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“Shareholder(s)”
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“Stock Exchange”
[ B8 52 FAT |

“subsidiary(ies)”
BT

“TradeTech”

[TradeTech)

“treasury shares”

[T

means

means

means

means

=
=

means

=
B

means

=
H

means

=
=]

means

means

=7
=]

Definitions
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the Semizbay mine located in the Valihanov District of Akmoltnsk Oblast in
Kazakhstan, which is owned and operated by Semizbay-U.
SURZLFEFRRIL - (R FE SR BT3B Akmoltnsk OblastZ Valihanovi& » Fg
NEEBRER -

Semizbay-U Limited Liability Partnership, a limited liability partnership
established in Kazakhstan with the Company holding 49% of its equity
interest through its wholly-owned subsidiary and recognised as a joint
venture of the Company.
FKEEFHMAERETAZE D% (Semizbay-U Limited Liability
Partnership) * RRMERIMEK Y ¢ BRETEEEE - BEARAEE
% - ARAFEADEN B R RS H49% % o

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) as amended from time to time.
TNRFEIEFTH GRS LRAGGD) (EBEDIFEET1E) °

ordinary share(s) in the Company with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each.
RARIBREEC.ONETL Z Tk o

holder(s) of the share(s) of the Company.
RARRGOFEA °

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
EEMARXHMABRAT]

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules.
BEALTRAIME T2 2% -

TradeTech of Denver Tech Centre, located at 7887E. Belleview Avenue,
Suite 888, Englewood, CO 80111, USA, one of the leading providers of
uranium prices and an independent third party.

Denver Tech Centre &) TradeTech * fii/A7887E. Belleview Avenue, Suite
888, Englewood, CO 80111, USA » AERMELIREE Y —  WATE

o A —

NgF=—) °

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules.
BB FmRAlmrTras -
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“USD” or “US$”
B

“UxC”
[UxC]
“Zhalpak Deposit”
Eq%:4

* For identification purpose only
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WA g

triuranium octaoxide, a compound of uranium present as an olive green
to black, odorless solid, which is one of the more popular forms of
yellowcake and is transported between mills and refineries in this form.
Nafb=th  —EHHbEY  EMESZZEE  BEROER "R
B ESI R 2 — - WIARKTEIE TR R Rm < fHE ) o

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland.
ARPFNE R E BRS R -

the United States of America.
EFEREFEH -

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the US.
EoT 0 EBZEEE -

UxC, LLC, one of the leading providers of uranium prices and an
independent third party.
UxC, LLC » REMBERHELIRHEY — U RBIFE=F °

the uranium deposit located in Sozak district, Kazakhstan, which is owned
and operated by Ortalyk.
RRERAMERA @A hE - ARARTHEERERE -
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